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Commission File No. 1-12984
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Eagle Materials Inc. (the “Company” or “EXP” whichay be referred to as “we”, “our” or “us”) is a mdacturer of basic building
materials including gypsum wallboard, cement, gypsund non-gypsum recycled paperboard and concnetaggregates. We were founded in
1963 as a building materials subsidiary of CentexpOration (“Centex”) and we operated as a puldimgany under the name Centex
Construction Products, Inc. from April 1994 to Jaryw30, 2004, at which time Centex completed dreex distribution of its shares to its
shareholders (the “Spin-off”). Since the date & 8pin-off, we are no longer affiliated with Cent&wday, our primary businesses are the
manufacture and distribution of gypsum wallboard #re manufacture and sale of cement. Gypsum waaithis distributed throughout the U
with particular emphasis in the geographic marketrest to our production facilities. We sell cetrieriour regional markets, including
northern Nevada and California, the greater Chicaga, the Rocky Mountain region and central TeAa$4arch 31, 2009 we operated five
gypsum wallboard plants (six board lines), four eafrplants (six kilns, one of which belongs to mimt venture company), one recycled
paperboard plant, nine concrete batching plantdwodggregates facilities.

We operate in cyclical commodity businesses thatiectly related to the overall economic enviremt) particularly the
residential and commercial construction industr@st operations, depending on each business segraage from local in nature to national
businesses. We have operations in a variety ofrgpbgc markets, which subject us to the economiditmns in each such geographic market
as well as the national market. General economimtlarns or localized downturns in the regions wheeehave operations could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finar@abition and results of operations. Our Wallboand Paperboard operations are more
national in scope and shipments are made throughewtontinental U.S, except for the northeast. €&ment companies are located in
geographic areas west of the Mississippi river thiedChicago, lllinois metropolitan area. Due to lihe value-to-weight ratio of cement,
cement is usually shipped within a 150 mile radifithe plants by truck and up to 300 miles by rdigugh changes in the price of diesel fuel
may impact the truck shipping radius. Concrete aygtegates are even more regional as those operatove the areas immediately
surrounding Austin, Texas and north of Sacrame@édifornia. Cement, concrete and aggregates demmeaydfluctuate more widely because
local and regional markets and economies may be sensitive to changes than the national markets.

Each of our segments has been impacted by thentwcenomic downturn differently. Gypsum Wallboasdhich is a national
business, has been negatively impacted by the aseia new home starts throughout the United Statewell as the decline in commercial
construction. Utilization of our Gypsum Wallboardidion was approximately 60% during fiscal yeaD20We do not expect residential
housing starts to improve materially during fis2@lLO, especially given the current supply of unsmithes and the unwillingness of credit
markets to support speculative new home constnuc@ar Recycled Paperboard division earnings reetb@onsistent year-over-year,
primarily due to decreases in the cost of recyélgel and certain improvements to our manufactugngeess that reduced our operating costs,
namely natural gas. We expect the price of recyfibet to remain at lower levels during fiscal 20h@wever, we also expect our sales of
gypsum paper to continue to decline as the gypswusiry reduces sales and production.

Certain markets in our Cement division have bequaitted more severely than others, due to the dispanpact of the slowdown
on the west coast and mid-west as compared to thetain and Texas areas. Cement consumption ibited States declined to
106.4 million short tons in calendar 2008 as coragao 126.2 million short tons in calendar 2007ilevimports declined to 12% of total
cement consumption in calendar 2008 as compargti%ocalendar 2007. The American Recovery and Rsimant Act, a stimulus package
passed by the United States Congress, is experdvide increased demand for cement; howevemnijerity of the demand created by
government stimulus is expected to be consumedymeert
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We continue to be committed to our goal of beirgvacost producer in each of the markets in whiehaompete through
exceptional operation of our complicated manufaetuplants and disciplined investment in proverntestogy. We will also continue to focus
on expansion through acquisition or expansion @dterg facilities that provide increased profitatyifor our shareholders.

INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management and financial reporting purposesbuosinesses are separated into four segmentsu@yyllboard; Cement;
Recycled Paperboard; and Concrete and Aggregatessexiption of these business segments can be foupages 3-13.

The following table presents revenues and earrtiefsre interest and income taxes contributed bi e&dour industry segments
during the periods indicated. We conduct one offour cement plant operations through a joint vemt@exas Lehigh Cement Company LP,
which is located in Buda, Texas. We own a 50% é&#ein the joint venture and account for our indetesing the equity method of accounting.
However, for segment reporting purposes, we pragaately consolidate our 50% share of the cement y@nture’s revenues and operating
earnings, which is consistent with the way manageroanizes the segments within the Company fddimgeoperating decisions and
assessing performance. Identifiable assets, depiati depletion and amortization, and capital exjiteres by segment are presented in Note
(G) of the Notes to the Consolidated FinancialeStegnts on pages 52-55.

For the Fiscal Years Ended March 31
2009 2008 2007
(dollars in millions)

Revenues
Gypsum Wallboart $ 279.5 $ 342 $ 511
Cement 289.t 345.2 321.¢
Paperboari 116.¢ 133.2 127.5
Concrete and Aggregat 66.2 87.€ 97.%
Other, ne 3.€ 15 4.5
Sut-total 755.( 910.: 1,062.¢
Less: Intersegment Revent (57.0) (63.€) (63.9)
Less: Joint Ventures Revent (95.7) (97.9) (76.5)
Total Net Revenue $ 6022 $ 7496 $ 922«
Operating Earnings
Gypsum Wallboart $ 12 $ 46.C $ 1981
Cement 82.C 106.¢ 92.2
Paperboar 16.€ 17.C 19.C
Concrete and Aggregat 4.€ 13.1 16.2
Other, ne 3.€ 15 4.5
Sut-total 108.( 184.2 330.(
Corporate Overhee (16.9) (18.9) (20.9)
Earnings Before Interest and Income Ta $ 911 $ 165¢4 $ 309.%
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Net revenues (net of joint venture and intersegmargnue, see Note (G) in the Notes to the Core@litiFinancial Statements) for
the past three years from each of our businessesgigirexpressed as a percentage of total net resewere as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2009 2008 2007
Percentage of Total Net Revenu
Gypsum Wallboart 46.4% 45.7% 55.5%
Cement 31.C 31.¢€ 25.€
Paperboar 11.1 10.7 8.1
Concrete and Aggregate
Readymix Concret 7.4 8.C 6.7
Aggregates 34 8k 3.€
Sut-total 10.¢ 11.t 10.z
Other, ne 0.7 0.2 0.5
Total Net Revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

GYPSUM WALLBOARD OPERATIONS

Company Operations . We currently own and operate five gypsum wallbcaahufacturing facilities, comprising six board kne
There are four primary steps in the manufacturirggess: (1) gypsum is mined and extracted frongtband (or, in the case of synthetic
gypsum, received from a power generation compdgythe gypsum is then calcined and convertedpraster; (3) the plaster is mixed with
various other materials and water to produce auréxknown as slurry, which is extruded between ¢aatinuous sheets of recycled
paperboard on a high-speed production line andvaticto harden; and (4) the sheets of gypsum waitbage then cut to appropriate lengths,
dried and bundled for sale. Gypsum wallboard islusdinish the interior walls and ceilings in résntial, commercial and industrial
construction.

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding our plants:

Annual Gypsum

Wallboard Capacity Estimated Minimum

Gypsum Estimated Gypsum
Location (MMSF) ) Rock Reserves (year: Reserves (million tons
Albuquerque, New Mexico 42F 50+20) 38@
Bernalillo, New Mexico 47E 50+2© 38
Gypsum, Colorad 70C 254 16
Duke, Oklahoma 1,25( 2146) 19
Georgetown, South Carolir 75C 59© - ©

Total _ 3.,60¢

@ Million Square Feet (“MMSF"), subject to anticipdtproduct mix.

@  The same reserves serve both New Mexico plants.

@ Includes mining claims and leased reserves.

@ Includes both owned and leased reserves.

®)  We anticipate that additional reserves would bélalvie on satisfactory terms, if required.
®  We have a sixty year supply agreement with Santem€r for synthetic gypsum.

Our gypsum wallboard production totaled 2,149 MMBFiscal 2009 and 2,427 MMSF in fiscal 2008. Tajgpsum wallboard
sales were 2,102 MMSF in fiscal 2009 and 2,395 MNSfiscal 2008. Total wallboard production as ageatage of current rated capacity
approximately 60% in fiscal 2009 and 80% in fis2@08. The Company’s operating rates were consistghtindustry average capacity
utilization in both fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008.
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Raw Materials and Fuel Supplies. We mine and extract natural gypsum rock, the ppalaiaw material used in the manufacture of
gypsum wallboard, from mines and quarries ownetkdd or subject to mining claims owned by the Cam@and located near our plants. We
also use synthetic gypsum at our Georgetown, SOatblina plant that we obtain through a supply aegrent with Santee Cooper, a South
Carolina utility company. Two leases cover the Ndexico reserves; one with the Pueblo of Zia andstheond with the State of New Mexico.
The term of the Zia lease continues for so longygsum is produced in paying quantities, as defingde agreement. The term of the State
lease continues for so long as annual lease pagraemnimade. We do not anticipate any problemsntiraging to extend the term of these
leases for the foreseeable future. Gypsum oreveset the Gypsum, Colorado plant are containelinvi total of 115 placer claims
encompassing 2,300 acres. We also hold mineraisrigh an additional 108 unpatented mining claimenetmineral rights can be developed
upon completion of permitting requirements. We ently own land with over 14 million tons of gypsumthe area of Duke, Oklahoma, with
an additional 5 million tons controlled throughease agreement. Other gypsum deposits are locededhe plant in Duke, which we believe
may be obtained at reasonable cost when neededré\irrently in the second year of a sixty yeapuagreement (original twenty year te
with two twenty year extension options) with a pahitility in South Carolina for our synthetic gypa. Based on the size of the power plant, it
is anticipated that the power plant will produce@uahate gypsum for the foreseeable future to sadisfyoperating needs. If the utility is unable
to provide the agreed-upon amount of gypsum,riggsponsible for providing gypsum from a third padyfulfill its obligations.

Through our modern low cost paperboard mill we nfiacture sufficient quantities of paper necessanpfo gypsum wallboard
production. Paper is a significant cost componeihé manufacture of gypsum wallboard, currentfyresenting approximately orikird of oul
cost of production.

Our gypsum wallboard manufacturing operations asgel quantities of natural gas and electrical powesignificant portion of the
Company’s natural gas requirements for our gypsatibeard plants are currently provided by four gesducers under gas supply agreements
expiring in March 2010 for Colorado, May 2010 foew Mexico, October 2009 for Oklahoma and Janua@0Z0r South Carolina. If the
agreements are not renewed, we expect to be ablgdm our gas supplies from other suppliers atpetitive prices. Electrical power is
supplied to our New Mexico plants at standard itidisrates by a local utility. Our Albugquerque ptaitilizes an interruptible power supply
agreement, which may expose it to some productiterriuptions during periods of power curtailmerdawer for our Gypsum, Colorado facility
is generated at the facility by a cogeneration paulent. Currently, the cogeneration power faciitypplies power and waste hot gases for
drying to the gypsum wallboard plant. We do not aey power to third parties. Gas costs represgptaximately 25% of our production costs.

Sales and Distribution . The principal sources of demand for gypsum walld@ae (i) residential construction, (ii) repair and
remodeling, (iii) non-residential construction, ging other markets such as exports and manufagtuoesing, which we estimate accounted
for approximately 38%, 35%, 26% and 1%, respedtivef calendar 2008 industry sales. The gypsumbaalld industry remains highly
cyclical; and closely follows construction industycles, particularly housing construction. Alseptand for wallboard can be seasonal and is
generally greater from spring through the middlaafumn.

We sell gypsum wallboard to numerous building niatedealers, gypsum wallboard specialty distribgsittumber yards, home
center chains and other customers located throughewnited States. Gypsum wallboard is sold delavered basis, mostly by truck. We
generally utilize third-party common carriers faligeries. Two customers with multiple shippingdtions accounted for approximately 28%
of our total gypsum wallboard sales during fisc@02. The loss of these customers could have a imlaaelverse effect on the financial results
of the gypsum wallboard segment.

Although gypsum wallboard is distributed princigat regional areas, certain industry producersliging the Company) have the
ability to ship gypsum wallboard by rail outsideithusual regional distribution areas to regiongretdemand is strong. We own or lease 140
railcars for transporting gypsum wallboard. In aida, in order to facilitate distribution in cenastrategic areas, we maintain a distribution
center in Albuquerque, New Mexico and two reloaddgan California. Our rail distribution capabiés

4
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permit us to service customers in markets on datreist and west coasts. During fiscal 2009, ajppeigly 5% of our sales volume of gyps
wallboard was transported by rail. Equipment avmiity for both rail and truck shipments is expette remain consistent during fiscal 2009.

Competition . There are eight manufacturers of gypsum wallboattié U.S. operating a total of approximately &nps. We
estimate that the three largest producers—USG Catipa, National Gypsum Company and Koch Industrascount for approximately 60%
of gypsum wallboard sales in the U.S. In generaljmber of our competitors in the gypsum wallbdadiistry have greater financial,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution resoutbes we do. Furthermore, certain of our competitiperate vertically integrated gypsum
wallboard distribution centers, which may provitilern with certain marketing advantages over us.

Due to the commaodity nature of the product, contipetiis based principally on price, which is higlsignsitive to changes in supply
and demand. Product quality and customer serviealap important to the customer.

Currently, wallboard production capacity in the tédi States is estimated at approximately 36 bikignare feet per year, which is
consistent with production capacity in 2005. Sig085, approximately 6 billion feet of new manufattyg capacity has been added to the
market, which has been offset by the closing oéofatoduction facilities. No new capacity is exgetto be added during calendar year 2009.
The Gypsum Assaociation, an industry trade grougimeses that total calendar 2008 gypsum wallboargrsents by U.S. manufacturers were
approximately 25.0 billion square feet, resultingverage industry capacity utilization in calen2@®8 of approximately 65%; however,
currently the industry’s capacity utilization isagproximately 50%.

Environmental Matters. The gypsum wallboard industry is subject to numerfederal, state and local laws and regulations
pertaining to health, safety and the environmeom& of these laws, such as the federal Clean AimrAd the federal Clean Water Act (and
analogous state laws), impose environmental peéngitequirements and govern the nature and amdierhissions that may be generated
when conducting particular operations. Some lawsh &s the federal Comprehensive Environmental étessy Compensation, and Liability
Act (“CERCLA") (and analogous state laws), imposdigations to clean up or remediate spills of hdeas materials into the environment.
Other laws require us to reclaim certain land upampletion of extraction and mining operations im quarries. None of our gypsum
wallboard operations are at present the subjeahpflocal, state or federal environmental procegslior inquiries. We do not, and have not,
used asbestos in any of our gypsum wallboard ptsduc

Our gypsum wallboard manufacturing process comhkastgnificant amount of fuel, especially naturasgand our operations co!
therefore be subject to future regulation of greersle gas emissions. For a more detailed discuséitie potential climate change regulation
(including federal, state and regional), see theviEbnmental Matters” section of our cement bussngsscription on pages 8-10.

Although our gypsum wallboard operations could teeasely affected by federal, regional or statmate change initiatives, at this
time, it is not possible to accurately estimate tioture laws or regulations addressing greenhoaseegissions would impact our business.
Any imposition of raw materials or production limtiions, fueluse or carbon taxes or emission limitations or cédas could have a significa
impact on the gypsum wallboard manufacturing inguahd a material adverse effect on the finan@allts of our operations.

Capital Expenditures. We had no capital expenditures related to compdiamith environmental regulations applicable to our
gypsum wallboard operations during fiscal 2009, weddo not expect any material capital expenditdrging fiscal 2010.

5
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CEMENT OPERATIONS

Company Operations . Our cement production facilities are locatediimear Buda, Texas; LaSalle, lllinois; Laramie, \Wying;
and Fernley, Nevada. The LaSalle, lllinois, Larariigyoming and Fernley, Nevada facilities are whallyned. The Buda, Texas plant is
owned by Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP, a linpednership joint venture owned 50% by us and 5§@%edhigh Cement Company, a
subsidiary of Heidelberg Cement AG. Our LaSallindis plant operates under the name of lllinoisr@at Company, the Laramie, Wyoming
plant operates under the name of Mountain Cememtpaay and the Fernley, Nevada plant under the mdrNevada Cement Company.

Cement is the basic binding agent for concreteimagry construction material. Our modern cemenh{daitilize dry process
technology and at present approximately 85% ofctinker capacity is from preheater or preheaterfaieiner kilns. The following table sets
forth certain information regarding these plants:

Estimated
Minimum
Rated Annual .
Clinker Capacity Kiln Limestone
Dedication
Manufacturing Number of Reserves
Location (M short tons) ) Process Kilns Date (Years)
Buda, TX®@ 1,30(C Dry — 1 1983 50+6)
4 Stage
Preheater/
Pre-calcinel
LaSalle, IL 1,00( Dry -5 1 2006 356)
Stage
Preheater/
Pre-calcinel
Laramie, WY 65C Dry -2 1 1988 29)
Stage 1 1996
Preheater
Dry — Long
Dry Kiln
Fernley, NV 50¢ Dry — Long 1 1964 50+
Dry Kiln 1 1969
Dry -1
Stage
Preheate
Total-Gross? 3,45¢
Total-Net®® 2,80¢

(@ One short ton equals 2,000 pounds.

@ The amount shown represents 100% of plant capanityproduction. This plant is owned by a sepaiatiéedd partnership in which the
Company has a 50% interest.

@) Generally, a plant’'s cement grinding productionazay is greater than its clinker production capaci
@ Net of partne’'s 50% interest in the Buda, Texas plant.

®)  Owned reserves.

® Includes both owned and leased reserves.

Our net cement production, including our 50% sluditie cement Joint Venture production, and corigarsf purchased clinker,
totaled 2.3 million tons in fiscal 2009 and 2.8liait tons fiscal 2008. Total net cement sales udilg our 50% share of cement sales from the
Joint Venture, were 2.9 million tons in fiscal 2088d 3.4 million tons in fiscal 2008. During thespawo years, we imported and purchased
cement from others to be resold. Purchased ceratat typically occur at lower gross profit margihsfiscal 2009, 16% of the cement sold by
us was acquired from outside sources, compare8%oit fiscal 2008. Texas Lehigh Cement Company,58% joint venture, owns a minority
interest in an import terminal in Houston, Texasxds Lehigh can purchase up to 495,000 short tamsadly from the cement terminal.

Cement production is capital-intensive and involkiggh initial fixed costs. We previously announg#ans to modernize and
expand our Nevada Cement and Mountain Cementtfasjlwhich are our oldest and least efficient fdabue to the current conditions in the
Mountain and Nevada markets, we do not expectgmtsgnificant construction activity on these gkaduring 2009. Once significant
construction is begun, we expect it will take bedwd 8 and 24 months to comple
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Raw Materials and Fuel Supplies. The principal raw material used in the productibpartland cement is calcium carbonate in the
form of limestone. Limestone is obtained principalirough mining and extraction operations condiietiequarries that we own or lease and
are located in close proximity to our plants. Wedwe that the estimated recoverable limestonerveseowned or leased by us will permit each
of our plants to operate at our present produatapacity for at least 30 years. Other raw matetiaésl in substantially smaller quantities than
limestone are sand, clay, iron ore and gypsum. & hegterials are readily available and can eithestiteined from Company-owned or leased
reserves or purchased from outside suppliers.

Our cement plants use coal and petroleum cokeegrsptimary fuel, but are equipped to burn natgesd as an alternative. The cost
of delivered coal and petroleum coke rose in fi@€fl9 and may rise again in fiscal 2010. We haveused hazardous waste-derived fuels in
any of our plants. Our plants in LaSalle, lllinaisd Buda, Texas are permitted to burn scrap tgessabstitute fuel. Electric power is also a
major cost component in our manufacturing proceslsvee have sought to diminish overall power cogtadopting interruptible power supply
agreements. These agreements may expose us tgsotoetion interruptions during periods of powertailment.

Sales and Distribution . Demand for cement can be cyclical, because denarzbhcrete products is derived from demand for
construction, with public works contracts comprigover 50% of total demand. Construction spenditdy@ment consumption declined
throughout calendar 2008, and have continued tesafuring the first three months of calendar 200t construction sector is also affected
by the general condition of the economy as wetkgional economic influences. Regional cement markeperience peaks and valleys
correlated with regional construction cycles. Adudlilly, demand for cement is seasonal, particyliarhorthern states where inclement winter
weather often affects construction activity. Censaies are generally greater from spring througmtiddle of autumn than during the
remainder of the year. The impact to our businésegional construction cycles may be mitigateddme degree by our geographic
diversification.

The following table sets forth certain informati@yarding the geographic area served by each afeuent plants and the location
of our distribution terminals in each area. We havetal of 11 cement storage and distribution teafs that are strategically located to extend
the sales areas of our plants.

Plant Location Principal Geographic Areas Distribution Terminals

Buda, Texas Texas and western Louisiana Corpus Christi, Texas
Houston, Texas
Orange, Texas
Roanoke (Ft. Worth), Texas
Waco, Texas
Houston Cement Company (Joint Venture),
Houston, Texa

LaSalle, lllinois lllinois and southern Wiscons Hartland, Wisconsil
Laramie, Wyomincg Wyoming, Utah, Colorado and weste Salt Lake City, Utal
Nebraske Denver, Colorado
North Platte, Nebrask
Fernley, Nevad Northern Nevada and northern Califor Sacramento, Californi

Cement is distributed directly to our customers tigdhrough customer pickups or by common carrfesm plants or distribution
terminals. We transport cement principally by taibur storage and distribution terminals. No snglstomer accounted for 10% or more of
our cement segment sales during fiscal 2009. Saéemade on the basis of competitive prices in ezatket. As is customary in the industry,
we do not typically enter into long-term sales cacts.
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Competition . The cement industry is extremely competitive assalit of multiple domestic suppliers and the imation of foreign
cement through various terminal operations. Apprmtely 85% of the U.S. cement industry is owneddogign international companies.
Competition among producers and suppliers of cersdrased primarily on price, with consistency oélity and service to customers being
important but of lesser significance. Price contmetiamong individual producers and suppliers ehent within a geographic area is intense
because of the fungible nature of the product. Beeaf cement’s low value-to-weight ratio, the tigkacost of transporting cement on land is
high and limits the geographic area in which eamhmany can market its products profitably; therefdne U.S. cement industry is fragmented
into regional geographic areas rather than a simafienal selling area. No single cement comparsyahdistribution of plants extensive enough
to serve all geographic areas, so profitabilitgdasitive to shifts in the balance between regisnpply and demand.

Cement imports into the U.S. occur primarily to glgmnent domestic cement production. Cement is &fflyiemported into deep
water ports or transported on the Mississippi Rey@tem near major population centers to take ddgarof lower waterborne freight costs
versus higher truck and rail transportation cds#s U.S. based manufacturers incur to deliver indosame areas.

The Portland Cement Association estimates that itapepresented approximately 12% of cement uséueity.S. during calendar
2008 as compared with approximately 21% in 200728% in 2006.

Environmental Matters. Our cement operations are subject to numerousdedstate and local laws and regulations pertaiting
health, safety and the environment. Some of theags, Isuch as the federal Clean Air Act and thertdd&lean Water Act (and analogous state
laws) impose environmental permitting requirememd govern the nature and amount of emissionsrhgtbe generated when conducting
particular operations. Some laws, such as the & @#¥RCLA (and analogous state laws) impose ohitigatto clean up or remediate spills of
hazardous materials into the environment. Othes l@guire us to reclaim certain land upon comphetibextraction and mining operations in
our quarries. We believe that we have obtainethalmaterial environmental permits that are necggsaconduct our operations. We further
believe that we are conducting our operations bstntial compliance with these permits. In additimone of our sites are listed as a CER(
“Superfund” site.

Four environmental issues involving the cement rfesturing industry deserve special mention. Thet fssue involves cement k
dust or CKD. The federal Environmental ProtectiageAcy, or EPA, has been evaluating the regulatatys of CKD under the federal
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRfAa number of years. In 1999, the EPA proposadeathat would allow states to reguli
properly-managed CKD as a non-hazardous waste staterlaws and regulations governing solid wasteontrast, CKD that was not
properly managed would be treated as a hazardosie wader RCRA. In 2002, the EPA confirmed itsntitsn to exempt properly-managed
CKD from the hazardous waste requirements of RCR#. agency announced that it would collect additiatata over the next three to five
years to determine if the st&’' regulation of CKD is effective, which may leacetEPA to withdraw its 1999 proposal to treat anyDCs a
hazardous waste. In May 2008, the EPA indicatetlitltantinues to consider an approach wherebyoitld finalize its 1999 proposal to
exempt properly-managed CKD wastes and establsleqtive CKD management standards; however, asagf 2009 the EPA has reported
that it continues to consider comments receivediswdcertain when its proposal will be finalized.

Currently, substantially all CKD produced in contieg with our ongoing operations is recycled, ameréfore such CKD is not
viewed as a waste under RCRA. However, CKD wa®héstlly collected and stored aite at our lllinois, Nevada and Wyoming cemenn
and at a former plant site in Corpus Christi, Texdsich is no longer in operation. If either the/E®r the states decide to impose management
standards on this CKD at some point in the futwe could incur additional costs to comply with ta@equirements with respect to our
historically collected CKD. CKD that comes in carttavith water might produce a leachate with an lalkg high enough to be classified as
hazardous and might also leach certain hazardaas metals therein.
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A second industry environmental issue involveshiséorical disposal of refractory brick containialgromium. Such refractory
brick was formerly used widely in the cement indys$b line cement kilns. We currently do not uskaetory brick containing chromium, and
we crush spent refractory brick which is then usgdaw feed in the kiln.

A third industry environmental issue involves tlwential regulation of our emission of “greenhogases,” including carbon
dioxide. Many scientists and others believe thaeghouse gases contribute to the warming of thénBaatmosphere resulting in global clim
change. The consequences of greenhouse gas emiagianion regulations for our cement operatiorislikely be significant because (1) the
cement manufacturing process requires the combusfitarge amounts of fuel to generate very high témperatures, and (2) the production
of carbon dioxide is a byproduct of the calcinatwacess, whereby carbon dioxide is removed froleiura carbonate to produce calcium
oxide.

Potential regulation of greenhouse gas emissionsariginate from several sources that are currecstlysidering the global climate
change issue. On the federal level, Democraticelesadf the House Energy and Commerce CommitteereReptatives Henry Waxman (©A)
and Ed Markey (D-MA), introduced an energy and alienbill, “The American Clean Energy and Securitt 8f 2009,” or H.R. 2454, on
March 31, 2009. This legislation would require teduction of greenhouse gas emissions in phagetingtin 2012 and achieving an 83%
reduction below 2005 levels by 2050. The Waxmankdgahill would regulate and reduce greenhouse gasséons through a “cap-and-trade”
program, which would entail the government’s issigaof a set amount of tradable emission permitdlowances. The Waxman-Markey bill
has garnered bipartisan support and many key Cssigreal Members believe its passage is likely leyethd of 2009.

In April 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court decidédssachusetts v. EPAvhich related to the regulation of carbon dioxéaeissions
from motor vehicles under the Clean Air Act. TheuBdeld that greenhouse gases, including carbmxid#, fall under the federal Clean Air
Act’s definition of “air pollutant.” TheMassachusettdecision may eventually result in regulation ofbear dioxide and other greenhouse gas
emissions from stationary sources (such as manufagtfacilities) under certain Clean Air Act pragns. In response to tdassachusetts
decision, in July 2008 the EPA issued an advanteaof proposed rulemaking and is currently coasity public comments made regarding
greenhouse gas effects and regulations under gen@ir Act. Furthermore, the EPA recently issuagppsed regulations that would require
the economywide monitoring and reporting of greenhouse gasssimns on an annual basis, including extensivenfi@ése gas monitoring a
reporting requirements applicable to our industrigee EPA has also recently proposed findings€gponse to thlassachusettdecision) the
greenhouse gases in the atmosphere endanger pahltb and welfare, and that emissions from maialerces cause or contribute to
greenhouse gases in the atmosphere. These prdjpudieds, if finalized as proposed, would not imrisdly affect our operations, but
standards eventually promulgated pursuant to tfiedmgs could affect our operations and our apilit obtain air permits for new or modified
facilities. Therefore, it appears likely that thevidl be federal regulation of greenhouse gas eimissby the EPA under the Clean Air Act if
Congress does not adopt new legislation specifiealdressing emissions of greenhouse gases.

Several states have also taken measures to rephisgians of greenhouse gases, primarily througipléuened development of
greenhouse gas emission inventories or registrid®aregional greenhouse gas “cap and trade” progr For example, California Governor
Arnold Schwarzenegger signed AB 32 into law in RB€6, calling for a cap on greenhouse gas emissionughout California and a statew
reduction to 1990 levels by 2020. In December 2608 California Air Resource Board approved a fitarimplementing AB 32. The plan
contemplates a cap-and-trade program, beginnig§12. Many states have also joined together to fegional initiatives, which include the
Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative in the northehstWestern Regional Climate Action Initiativedahe Midwestern Greenhouse Gas
Accord.

Although our cement operations are not currentiyeaskly affected by federal, regional or state atenchange initiatives it is not
possible, at this time to accurately estimate hatre laws or regulations addressing greenhousemasions would impact our business. Any
imposition of raw materials or production limitai® fuel-use or carbon taxes or emission limitationreductions could have a significant
impact on the cement manufacturing industry andaterial adverse effect on us and our results ofatjpas.
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The fourth industry environmental issue is thatEfRA in 1999 promulgated regulations for certakidair pollutants, including
standards for portland cement manufacturing. Theimmam attainable control technology standards megegément plants to test for certain
pollutants and meet certain emission and operatisgdards. We have no reason to believe, howeéadriitese standards have placed us at a
competitive disadvantage. Recently, the EPA hapgwed to significantly reduce these emission stalsdar certain air pollutants from
Portland cement kilns. The proposal would set Broit mercury emissions from existing Portland cdrkiéns and would increase the
stringency of emission limits for new kilns. Theposal would also set emission limits for total toghrbons, particulate matter, and sulfur
dioxide from cement kilns of all sizes, and wowdduce hydrochloric acid emissions from kilns thratlarge emitters. It is not possible to
accurately estimate how these rules (if adopted)ldvimpact our business once they become fully é@mnted in 2013; however, they could
materially increase our cost of production. As wite 1999 regulations, we do not believe we wowglaced at a competitive disadvantage by
such rules.

We believe that our current procedures and practiteur operations, including those for handlind ananaging hazardous
materials, are consistent with industry standamisaae in substantial compliance with applicableiemmental laws and regulations.
Nevertheless, because of the complexity of ouratjers and the environmental laws to which we algext, there can be no assurance
past or future operations will not result in viadats, remediation costs or other liabilities orirwis. Moreover, we cannot predict what
environmental laws will be enacted or adopted @fthiure or how such future environmental lawsagutations will be administered or
interpreted. Compliance with more stringent envinemtal laws, or stricter interpretation of existemvironmental laws, could necessitate
significant capital outlays.

Capital Expenditures. We had capital expenditures related to complianitie @nvironmental regulations applicable to our eam
operations of $3.3 million during fiscal 2009 angbect to spend an additional $2.1 million durirgcél 2010. The majority of the expenditures
in fiscal 2009 related to upgrades to the baghcosgpartments at Illinois Cement Company.

RECYCLED PAPERBOARD OPERATIONS

Company Operations. Our recycled paperboard manufacturing operatioguiaed in November 2000, is located in Lawton,
Oklahoma. The paperboard company, which we refastBepublic, operates a state-of-the-art papéipnoitiucing high-quality, low-basis
weight gypsum liner paper for the wallboard indy$tom 100% recycled fiber. Manufacturing capakgbtat Republic, aside from the gypsum
liner products, include recycled containerboardigsa(linerboard and medium) and lightweight reaygaper for paper bags. In addition,
recycled industrial paperboard grades (tube/careksind protective angle board) are produced tamiag manufacturing efficiencies.

The Mill . Our paperboard operation has a highly technologiealvanced paper machine designed primarily fasgyn liner
production, although the machine is capable of pcowy other containerboard products. The paperifoum cross-directional strength and
finish characteristics facilitate the efficienciefsnew high-speed wallboard manufacturing lines.

The paperboard operation manufactures high-streggibum liner that is approximately 10% lightebamsis weight than generally
available in the U.S. The low-basis weight produtdizes less recycled fiber to produce paper timatiirn, absorbs less moisture during the
gypsum wallboard manufacturing process resultingétuced drying and energy (natural gas) usageloitasis weight paper also reduces
the overall finished board weight, providing walsd operations with more competitive transportatiosts — both the inbound and outbound
segments.
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Raw Materials . The principal raw materials are recycled papenf{becovered waste paper), water and specialtyrpapanicals.
The largest waste paper source used by the opeifatad cardboard containers (known as OCC). Adlef high grades (white papers
consisting of ink-free papers such as news blakusprinted papers) is used in the facing paperaduce a white product with customer-
desired properties.

We believe that an adequate supply of OCC recyfidbed will continue to be available from generatarsl brokers located within a
600 mile radius of the paper mill. The majoritytbé recycled fiber purchased is delivered via trugkh a limited amount (5%) delivered by
rail. Prices are subject to market fluctuationseldagn generation of material (supply), demand aedtesence of the export market. The
current outlook for fiscal year 2010 is for wassgper prices to remain flat for the first half afdal 2010 and, largely due to weakening demand
for consumer goods shrinking the demand for camtbpackaging, increase moderately thereafter. @umastomer contracts include price
escalators that partially offset/compensate fongea in raw material fiber prices.

The chemicals used in the paper making operatimfyding size, retention aids, dry strengths adelitj biocides and bacteria
controls, are readily available from several maotufigers at competitive prices. We are under a achial agreement with our current supplier
through December 2010.

The manufacture of recycled paperboard involvesiigeof large volumes of water in the productioocpss. The mill uses water
provided under an agreement with the City of Lawthlahoma municipal services. The agreement, wbichmenced in calendar year 1999,
is for a fifteen year term with two automatic fiyear extensions, unless we notify the City in wgtat least six months prior to the expiration
of the term or extended term. Although adequatecesuof water have historically been availablegxtended period of general water
shortages, legal curtailment of any paper mill'srent water sources or uses, or deterioration@fttirrent quality of water could adversely
affect the operations, thereby limiting our prodoctcapacity.

Electricity, natural gas and other utilities radéee available to us at either contracted ratesamdard industrial rates in adequate
supplies. These utilities are subject to standaddstrial curtailment provisions. In the event thatatural gas curtailment or unfavorable pri
condition should occur, the Lawton mill is equippgedise fuel oil as an alternative fuel in the Niooller.

Paperboard operations are generally large consushersergy, primarily natural gas and electricibyring fiscal 2009, natural gas
pricing increased during the first half of the ydaut moderated over the last half of the yeanalural gas prices were to increase, they would
negatively impact fiscal 2010 production costs apdrating earnings. The paper mill is subject telawtricity supply agreement with Public
Service of Oklahoma (PSO); however, this power camyphas a large dependency on natural gas, whighdts our electricity rates.

Sales and Distribution. Our manufactured recycled paperboard productsadepsimarily to gypsum wallboard manufacturers.
During fiscal 2009, approximately 42% of the reegtpaperboard sold by the paper mill was consurgedbCompany’s gypsum wallboard
manufacturing operations, approximately 27% wad twlCertainTeed, pursuant to a paper supply confitae “CertainTeed Agreement”), and
the remainder was shipped to containerboard aret atlanufacturers. The existing CertainTeed Agree¢mvas originally entered into by
Republic Paperboard and James Hardie Gypsum,nri®@99; however, the James Hardie North Americgsgy wallboard operations were
acquired by BPB Gypsum, whose operations were pluechased during fiscal 2006 by St. Gobain. St.&0b North American operations
conduct business under the CertainTeed trade riimedoss of CertainTeed as a customer or a terfomat reduction of CertainTeed’s
production of gypsum wallboard, unless replaced lspmmercially similar arrangement, could have tenel adverse effect on the Company.
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Environmental Matters . Prior to November 2000, our now closed Commercg, Ciblorado paper mill (the “Commerce City MjI”
had investigated the presence of subsurface petroteydrocarbons at the mill site and had retaimedrevironmental consultant who conclu
that fuel oil, jet fuel, and gasoline additives maigirated in the subsurface of the property fronadjacent property. As a result of an additional
subsequent investigation by the Commerce City Mékv environmental conditions were uncovered thaear to stem from underground
storage tank use on the mill site. The Commercg I@ill and a former owner of the Commerce City Mithve entered into a participation
agreement with the Division of Oil and Public Sgfef the Colorado Department of Labor and Employngtre “Oil Division”) to respond to
those conditions that appear to stem from histamiterground storage tank use. Under the partiopagreement, the Commerce City mill
pay 25% (with the former owner paying 75%) of tlests associated with the investigation and remiediafforts approved by both parties.
The former owner and we have each approved andigadino the Colorado Oil Division a Corrective Ast Plan (the “CAP”Yor the remova
of the subsurface petroleum hydrocarbon at the CemenCity Mill. The CAP was approved by the Colar&ail Division in calendar 2002. £
remediation has been completed and we are awdiiabapproval by the State of Colorado.

CONCRETE AND AGGREGATES OPERATIONS

Company Operations . Readymix concrete is a versatile, low-cost buildimgterial used in almost all construction. The piatithn
of readymix concrete involves the mixing of cemeatnd, gravel, or crushed stone and water to famerete, which is then sold and
distributed to numerous construction contractomndete is produced in batch plants and transpootéte customer’s job site in mixer trucks.

The construction aggregates business consist®ahthing, extraction, production and sale of crasbi®ne, sand, gravel and
lightweight aggregates such as expanded claystaidss Construction aggregates of suitable charsiits are employed in virtually all types
of construction, including the production of ponttecement concrete and asphaltic mixes in highwagtcuction and maintenance.

We produce and distribute readymix concrete fromgany-owned sites north of Sacramento, Californgia Austin, Texas. The
following table sets forth certain information rediag these operations:

Location Number of Plants Number of Trucks
Northern Californie 3 41
Austin, Texas 6 85

Total 9 12€

We conduct aggregate operations near our conaeil@iés in northern California and Austin, Texdgigregates are obtained
principally by mining and extracting from quarriesned or leased by the Company. The following takls forth certain information
regarding these operations:

Estimated Annual
Production Capacity

Estimated

Minimum
Location Types of Aggregate (Thousand tons) Reserves (Years
Northern Californie Sand and Grav 4,00( 1004@
Austin, Texas Limestone 3,00( 50+

Total 7,00(

@ Owned reserves through various subsidiaries.
@ Leased reserves.

Our total net aggregate sales were 3.5 million torisscal 2009 and 3.8 million tons in fiscal 200®tal aggregates production was
3.4 million tons for fiscal 2009 and 5.1 millionrffiscal 2008. A portion of our total aggregatesdurction is used internally by our readymix
concrete operations.
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Raw Materials . We supply from our manufactured cement facilitippraximately 100% and 0% of the cement requiremiamteut
Austin and northern California concrete operatioaspectively. We supply approximately 45% and 68%pectively, of our aggregates
requirements for our Austin and northern Califorodgcrete operations. We obtain the balance otenrent and aggregates requirements from
multiple sources in each of these areas.

We mine and extract limestone, sand and graveptineipal raw materials used in the productiomgregates, from quarries
owned or leased by us and located near our pl@hesnorthern California quarry is estimated to eambver one billion tons of sand and gre
reserves. The Austin, Texas quarry is covered lease which expires in 2060. Based on its curresdyction capacity, we estimate our
northern California and Austin, Texas quarries aonbver 100 years and approximately 50 yearsssries, respectively.

Sales and Distribution . Demand for readymix concrete and aggregates ladgggnds on local levels of construction activity.
Construction activity is also subject to weathanditions, the availability of financing at reasoletates and overall fluctuations in local
economies, and therefore tends to be cyclical. ®leeadymix concrete to numerous contractors ahdracustomers in each plant’s selling
area. Our batch plants in Austin and northern Galik are strategically located to serve eachrgplirea. Concrete is delivered from the batch
plants by company owned trucks.

We sell aggregates to building contractors andrathstomers engaged in a wide variety of constudictivities. Aggregates are
delivered from our aggregate plants by common eeriénd customer pick-up. One customer accounteapfroximately 10% of our segment
revenues in fiscal 2009. We are continuing ourrgdfto secure a rail link from our principal aggaeses deposit north of Sacramento, California
to supply extended markets in northern California.

Competition . Both the concrete and aggregates industries amgyHig;gmented, with numerous participants opetptimeach local
area. Because the cost of transporting concretaggibgates is very high relative to product valpesducers of concrete and aggregates
typically can profitably sell their products only areas within 50 miles of their production fa@kt Barriers to entry in each industry are low,
except with respect to environmental permittinguisements for new aggregate production facilitied aoning of land to permit mining and
extraction of aggregates.

Environmental Matters. The concrete and aggregates industry is subjeattmonmental regulations similar to those govegroar
cement operations. None of our concrete or aggesggierations are presently the subject of anyriabtecal, state or federal environmental
proceeding or inquiries.

EMPLOYEES
As of March 31, 2009, we had approximately 1,60@leyees.

As of March 31, 2009, we had approximately 400 exyges employed under collective bargaining agre¢sraard various
supplemental agreements with local unions.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteyrts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form &itd all amendments to
these reports available free of charge througlinestor relations page of our website, locategwatv.eaglematerials.coms soon as
reasonably practicable after they are filed wittiusnished to the SEC. This reference to our weklisitnerely intended to suggest where
additional information may be obtained by investarsd the materials and other information preseatedur website are not incorporated in
and should not otherwise be considered part ofRbigort. Alternatively, you may contact our investations department directly at
(214) 432-2000 or by writing to Eagle Materials.lnavestor Relations, 3811 Turtle Creek Blvd.,t8di100, Dallas, Texas 75219.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The foregoing discussion of our business and omeraishould be read together with the risk facsesforth below. They describe
various risks and uncertainties to which we aremay become subject, many of which are outsiderofantrol. These risks and uncertainties,
together with other factors described elsewherthis Report, have affected, or may in the futufecf our business, operations, financial
condition and results of operations in a materiataadverse manner.

We are affected by the level of demand in the construction industry, which is currently experiencing a significant downturn.

Demand for our products is directly related tolthesl of activity in the construction industry, whiincludes residential,
commercial and infrastructure construction. Inigatér, the downturn in residential constructiors mpacted, and will likely continue to
adversely impact, our wallboard business. The egdidl construction industry is currently undergpasignificant downturn, which
commenced in 2006 and has become more pronouneedent periods. The effects of this downturn haeren exacerbated by market
disruptions resulting from the subprime mortgagsisrwhich began in the second half of 2007, dedensuing financial crisis affecting the
banking system and financial markets, which becawent in the third quarter of 2008. In 2008, $amtrends have emerged in commercial
construction. Furthermore, activity in the infrastiure construction business is directly relatetheobamount of government funding available
for such projects. Any decrease in the amount eégument funds available for such projects or amgrelase in construction activity in general
(including a continued decrease in residential tanson or a weakening of commercial construction)ild have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results adrafions.

Our customers participatein cyclical industries, which are subject to industry downturns.

A majority of our revenues are from customers wieia industries and businesses that are cyclicahture and subject to changes
in general economic conditions. In addition, sinoe operations are in a variety of geographic markaur businesses are subject to the
economic conditions in each such geographic mageneral economic downturns or localized downtimrthe regions where we have
operations, including the current and any futuremtoirns in the residential or commercial constutindustries, have the potential of
adversely affecting demand for our products. Furtfoge, additions to the production capacity of sty participants, particularly in the
gypsum wallboard industry, have the potential efating an imbalance between supply and demandhwelicld adversely affect the prices at
which we sell our products and adversely affectcthigectability of our receivable. In general, doyther downturns in the industries to which
we sell our products or any further increases pacdy in the gypsum wallboard, paperboard and cemeustries could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

Volatility and disruption of financial markets could negatively impact our customers and therefore our results of operations.

Volatility and disruption of financial markets coldimit customers’ ability to obtain adequate fioarg to maintain operations and
result in a decrease in sales volume or defaudtroaunts owed to us that could have a negative ibguaour results of operations.

Volatility and disruption of financial markets could affect access to credit.

The current difficult economic market environmentausing contraction in the availability and acréase in the cost of credit in
the marketplace. This could potentially reducesterces of liquidity for the Company.
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The value of investments are influenced by economic and market conditions.

The current economic environment could negativelpdct the fair value of pension assets, which cmdcease future funding
requirements of the pension trusts.

Our businessis seasonal in nature, and this causes our quarterly resultsto vary significantly.

A majority of our business is seasonal with pealeneies and profits occurring primarily in the maent April through November
when the weather in our markets is more favorablonstruction activity. Quarterly results haveiedrsignificantly in the past and are likely
to vary significantly from quarter to quarter iretfuture. Such variations could have a negativeaghpn the price of our common stock.

Our operations and our customers are subject to extensive governmental regulation, which can be costly and burdensome.

Our operations and those of our customers are ctuiojand affected by federal, state and local lamd regulations with respect to
such matters as land usage, street and highwayg usaige level and health and safety and envirotethaeratters. In many instances, various
certificates, permits or licenses are requiredrdeofor us or our customers to conduct busine$sraronstruction and related operations.
Although we believe that we are in compliance Imaterial respects with regulatory requiremeriteré can be no assurance that we will not
incur material costs or liabilities in connectioittwegulatory requirements or that demand forgnaducts will not be adversely affected by
regulatory issues affecting our customers. In &luifuture developments, such as the discoveneof facts or conditions, new or stricter le
or regulations (including without limitation, clireachange legislation described below), or stricterpretations of existing laws or
regulations, may impose new liabilities on us, isgadditional investment by us or prevent us figmening or expanding plants or facilities,
any of which could have a material adverse effecbar financial condition or results of operations.

Legislative and regulatory measures to address\poese gas emissions are in various phases ofsdiscis or implementation at
national, regional and state levels. The potentakequences of greenhouse gas emission reduatiasunes for our operations are potentially
significant because (1) the cement manufacturioggss requires the combustion of large amountsedf €2) in our cement manufacturing
process, the production of carbon dioxide is a bgpct of the calcination process, whereby carboride is removed from calcium carbonate
to produce calcium oxide, and (3) our gypsum waltdamanufacturing process combusts a significamieanof fuel, especially natural gas.
this time, it is not possible to accurately estienladw laws or regulations addressing greenhousergasions would impact our business. Any
imposition of raw materials or production limitai® fuel-use or carbon taxes or emission limitationreductions could have a significant
impact on the cement manufacturing industry andyghpsum wallboard manufacturing industry and a nietadverse effect on us and our
results of operations.

Furthermore, the EPA recently issued proposed atiguis that would require the economy-wide monitgrand reporting of
greenhouse gas emissions on an annual basis, imglextensive greenhouse gas monitoring and rempréquirements applicable to our
industries. The EPA has also recently proposedrfgsl(in response to thdassachusettdecision) that greenhouse gases in the atmosphere
endanger public health and welfare, and that eorissirom mobile sources cause or contribute torgreese gases in the atmosphere. These
proposed findings, if finalized as proposed, waudd immediately affect our operations, but standangentually promulgated pursuant to these
findings could affect our operations and our apii@t obtain air permits for new or modified faddis.
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Our products are commodities, which are subject to significant changesin supply and demand and price fluctuations.

The products sold by us are commodities and cotipetimong manufacturers is based largely on pRdees are often subject to
material changes in response to relatively mingetflations in supply and demand, general econoamditions and other market conditions
beyond our control. Increases in the industry’sdpation capacity for products such as gypsum walid@r cement or increases in cement
imports may create an oversupply of such produntsreegatively impact product prices. There candassurance that prices for products sold
by us will not decline in the future or that suatlines will not have a material adverse effecbonbusiness, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are subject to therisk of unfavorable weather conditions during peak construction periods and other unexpected operational
difficulties.

Because a majority of our business is seasonayordible weather conditions and other unexpectedatipnal difficulties during
peak construction periods could adversely affeerajing income and cash flow and could have a dEptionate impact on our results of
operations for the full year.

Our results of operations are subject to significant changes in the cost and availability of fuel, energy and other raw materials.

Major cost components in each of our businessethareost of fuel, energy and raw materials. Sigaift increases in the cost of
fuel, energy or raw materials or substantial desgsan their availability could materially and ackedy affect our sales and operating profits.
Prices for fuel, energy or raw materials used innaztion with our businesses could change sigmifigan a short period of time for reasons
outside our control. Prices for fuel and electrigaiver, which are significant components of thesassociated with our gypsum wallboard
cement businesses, have fluctuated significanthe@ent years and are expected to increase inutheef In the event of large or rapid increases
in prices, we may not be able to pass the incrgasesgh to our customers in full, which would redwur operating margin.

We may become subject to significant clean-up, remediation and other liabilities under applicable environmental laws.

Our operations are subject to state, federal acal Environmental laws and regulations, which ingokesbility for cleanup or
remediation of environmental pollution and hazaslaaste arising from past acts. These laws andatgis also require pollution control a
prevention, site restoration and operating peramt¥or approvals to conduct certain of our openati€ertain of our operations may from time-
to-time involve the use of substances that aresifiad as toxic or hazardous substances withinrbaning of these laws and regulations.
Additionally, any future laws or regulations addrieg greenhouse gas emissions would likely havegative impact on our business or results
of operations, either through the imposition of raaterial or production limitations, fuel-use ortwan taxes or emission limitations or
reductions. We are unable to accurately estimaéntipact on our business or results of operatidésp such law or regulation at this time.
Risk of environmental liability (including the in@ence of fines, penalties or other sanctionstigaliion liability) is inherent in the operation
our businesses. As a result, it is possible their@mmental liabilities and compliance with enviroantal regulations could have a material
adverse effect on our operations in the future.
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Our debt agreements contain restrictive covenants and require usto meet certain financial ratios and tests, which limit our
flexibility and could giverise to a default if we are unable to remain in compliance.

Our amended and restated credit agreement anadtbgurchase agreements governing our senior notgain, among other
things, covenants that limit our ability to finanfteure operations or capital needs or to engagehar business activities, including our ability
to:

. Incur additional indebtednes

. Sell assets or make other fundamental char

. Engage in mergers and acquisitio

. Pay dividends and make other restricted paym:

. Make investments, loans, advances or guarar

. Encumber the assets of the Company and its restraztbsidiaries
. Enter into transactions with our affiliate

In addition, these agreements require us to mektraintain certain financial ratios and tests, Whitay require that we take action
to reduce our debt or to act in a manner cont@our business objectives. Events beyond our chimiduding industry downturns and
changes in general business and economic conditi@aysmpair our ability to comply with these covateor meet those financial ratios and
tests. A breach of any of these covenants or fatiommaintain the required ratios and meet theireduests may result in an event of default
under those agreements. This may allow the lend®tsr those agreements to declare all amountsaodisy thereunder to be immediately
and payable, terminate any commitments to extertiducredit to us and pursue other remedies alail® them under the applicable
agreements. If this occurs, our indebtedness magctelerated and we may not be able to refinareadbelerated indebtedness on favorable
terms, or at all, or repay the accelerated indetessl

Increasesin interest rates could adversely affect demand for our products, which would have an adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Our business is significantly affected by the moeanhof interest rates. Interest rates have a dingaact on the level of residential,
commercial and infrastructure construction activitygher interest rates could result in decreasedahd for our products, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business and resutiperations. In addition, increases in interagts could result in higher interest expense
related to borrowings under our credit facilities.

Our production facilities may experience unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic events and scheduled maintenance.

Interruptions in our production capabilities maysa our productivity and results of operationsdolidie significantly during the
affected period. Our manufacturing processes guertient upon critical pieces of equipment. Suclipagent may, on occasion, be out of
service as a result of unanticipated events sudiness explosions, violent weather conditions nexpected operational difficulties. We also
have periodic scheduled shut-downs to perform raaarice on our facilities. Any significant interrgptin production capability may require
us to make significant capital expenditures to réyneroblems or damage as well as cause us todesmue due to lost production time, which
could have a material adverse effect on our resfibgperations and financial condition.
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Significant changesin the cost and availability of transportation could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Some of the raw materials used in our manufactysiegesses, such as coal or coke, are transportad facilities by truck or rail.
In addition, the transportation costs associatet thie delivery of our wallboard products are angigant portion of the variable cost of our
gypsum wallboard segment. Significant increasakerncost of fuel or energy can result in materiatéases in the cost of transportation which
could materially and adversely affect our operapngfits. In addition, reductions in the availatyilof certain modes of transportation such as
rail or trucking could limit our ability to delivegroduct and therefore materially and adverselgafbur operating profits.

This report includes various forward-looking statements, which are not facts or guarantees of future performance and which are
subject to significant risks and uncertainties.

This report and other materials we have filed dt filé with the SEC, as well as information inclediin oral statements or other
written statements made or to be made by us, gootainay contain forward-looking statements witthia meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, Section 21E of the ExchaAgeof 1934 and the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995. You can identify
these statements by the fact that they do noterédatnatters of a strictly factual or historicatura and generally discuss or relate to forecasts,
estimates or other expectations regarding futuemsv Generally, the words “believe,” “expect,’ténd,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,”
“may,” “can,” “could,” “might,” “will” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements|uding statements related to expected
operating and performing results, planned trangastiplans and objectives of management, futureldpments or conditions in the industries
in which we participate, including future prices ur products, audits and legal proceedings takvhie are a party and other trends,
developments and uncertainties that may affecbasmess in the future.

Forward-looking statements are not historical factguarantees of future performance but insteptbsent only our beliefs at the
time the statements were made regarding futuretevehich are subject to significant risks, undettas, and other factors, many of which are
outside of our control. Any or all of the forwardeking statements made by us may turn out to benmaly inaccurate. This can occur as a
result of incorrect assumptions, changes in faetiscrcumstances or the effects of known risks amzertainties. Many of the risks and
uncertainties mentioned in this report or otheorepfiled by us with the SEC, including those dissed in the risk factor section of this, will
important in determining whether these forward-logkstatements prove to be accurate. Consequeiiyner our stockholders nor any other
person should place undue reliance on our forwaotthg statements and should recognize that actsalts may differ materially from those
that may be anticipated by us.

All forward-looking statements made in this repangé made as of the date hereof, and the risk thadleresults will differ
materially from expectations expressed in this repdl increase with the passage of time. We utale¥ no obligation, and disclaim any duty,
to publicly update or revise any forward-lookingtetments, whether as a result of new informatioturé events, changes in our expectations
or otherwise.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
There are no unresolved Staff comments.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We operate cement plants, quarries and relatelitizxat Buda, Texas; LaSalle, Illinois; Fernl®evada and Laramie, Wyoming.
The Buda plant is owned by a partnership in whiehhave a 50% interest. Our principal aggregatetplamd quarries are located in the Aus
Texas area and Marysville, California. In additiarg operate gypsum wallboard plants in Albuquerane nearby Bernalillo, New Mexico;
Gypsum, Colorado; Duke, Oklahoma; and in Georget@auth Carolina. We produce recycled paperboakéaton, Oklahoma. None of our
facilities are pledged as security for any debts.

See “Item 1. Business” on pages 1-13 of this Refporadditional information relating to the Companproperties.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are a party to certain ordinary legal proceeslingidental to our business. In general, althabghoutcome of litigation is
inherently uncertain, we believe that all of thegieg litigation proceedings in which the Compamyany subsidiary are currently involved are
likely to be resolved without having a material adse effect on our consolidated financial condiboperations.

As previously reported, in connection with the aadiour federal income tax returns for the fispahrs ended March 31, 2001,
2002, and 2003, the Internal Revenue Service (“)RSued an Exam Report and Notice of Proposedsaijent on November 9, 2007, in
which it proposes to deny certain depreciation dédns claimed by us with respect to assets acdliyeus from Republic Group LLC in a
transaction completed in November 2000. In Noven20€7, we paid the IRS approximately $45.8 millioravoid the imposition of large
corporate tax underpayment interest. On Decemhi2d(@7, we filed an administrative appeal of the’ERBoposed adjustments. On
December 17, 2008, our initial appeals hearing #ithIRS was held. Our appeal is currently stijpingress. We intend to vigorously pursue
the appeal and, if necessary, resort to the cfanrts final determination. See Note (H) of the Nuote the Consolidated Financial Statement:
more information.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS
As of May 18, 2009, there were approximately 2,66@lers of record of our Common Stock which tragleshe New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol EXP.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsitg prices for our Common Stock as reported oNthe York Stock Exchange for the
periods indicated, as well as dividends declarethduhese periods:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 200¢ Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 200¢
Quarter ended: High Low Dividends High Low Dividends
June 3( $ 378 $ 253 $ 02C $ 50.7¢ $ 441t $ 0.2C
September 3 $ 3074 $ 207z $ 02C $ 509t $ 3567 $ 0.2
December 3. $ 2166 $ 1441 $ 01C $ 4071 $ 339t $ 0.2C
March 31 $ 2490 $ 16.7¢ $ 01C $ 382 $ 29.08 $ 0.2C

The “Dividends” section of ltem 7 “Management’s Bission and Analysis of Financial Condition” is &ty incorporated by reference
into this Part II, Item 5.

SHARE REPURCHASES

Our Board of Directors has approved the repurcbésecumulative total of 31,610,605 shares of oom@on Stock since we became
publicly held in April 1994. On November 7, 200BetBoard of Directors authorized us to repurchgstwan additional 5,156,800 shares, f
total authorization, as of that date, of 6,000,688res, of which 717,300 remain eligible for pusghat March 31, 2009. We did not repurchase
any shares during the fiscal year ended March 3292We repurchased 4,778,500 shares and 2,708h#&9é&s of Common Stock at a cost of
$176.9 million and $100.4 million during the fisgadars ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Share repurchases may be made from time-to-tintieeiopen market or in privately negotiated trarieast The timing and amount of
any repurchases of shares may be determined hyaoagement, based on its evaluation of market emdognic conditions and other factors.
Repurchases may also be effected pursuant to pianstructions that meet the requirements of R@le5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.

During fiscal 2009, we reacquired shares of stoockfan employee upon the vesting of restrictedkstioat was granted under our
Incentive Plan. These shares were forfeited byethployee and reacquired by us to satisfy the enggleyminimum statutory tax withholding,
which is required on restricted stock once theyobez vested and are shown in the following table:

Total Number of Share: Maximum Number of
Total Number Average Shares that May Yet bt
Price Paic Purchased as Part of
of Shares Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Per Share Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
January 1 through January 31, 2( — — —
February 1 through February 28, 2( — — —
March 1 through March 31, 20( 5,15¢ $ 24.2¢ —
Quarter 4 Total: 5,15¢ $ 24.2¢ — 717,30(

The equity compensation plan information set fantRart 111, Item 12 of this Form 10-K is herebyarporated by reference into this Part
I, Item 5.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiemcorporated by reference into any future fjlimder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedptto the extent that the Company specificalipiiporates it by reference into such
filing.

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeal tetarn to holders of our common stock with thencilative total returns of the
Russell 2000 index and the Dow Jones US BuildingeMals & Fixtures index. The graph assumes thawtiue of the investment in the
company’s common stock and in each of the indeixetu@ing reinvestment of dividends) was $100 orrdhie31, 2004 and tracks it through
March 31, 2009.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN?
Among Eagle Materials, Inc. Common Stock, The Russcll 2000 Index
And The Dow Jones US Building Maternials & Fixiures Index

$350
£300
5250
5200

$150 paeneeeEe

$100 Z- 2t mmm = Leu,

§50

3104 305 306 27 308 3109

Eagle Materials, Inc. = ——— Russell 2000  ------- Doy Jomes US Building Materials & Fixtures
* $100 invested on March 31, 2004 in stock or indlexuding reinvestment of dividenc

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Eagle Materials, Inc 100.0(C 139.7( 333.8: 237.8¢ 193.4% 135.4¢
Russell 200( 100.0( 105.4:. 132.6¢ 140.5( 122.2¢ 76.3¢
Dow Jones US Building Materials & Fixtur 100.0C 124.8¢ 152.9( 161.1: 134.4¢ 74.4¢

The stock price performance included in this grégphot necessarily indicative of future stock priesformance.

21



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Net Revenue

Earnings Before Income Tax

Net Earnings

Diluted Earnings Per Sha

Cash Dividends Per She

Total Asset:

Total Debt

Stockholder Equity

Book Value Per Share At Year E
Average Diluted Shares Outstand

(€3]

For the Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

$

$

602,18
62,18:
41,76¢

0.9t

0.6(
1,066,66!
355,00(
427,82
9.81
43,87¢

$ 749,550 $922,40: $859,70:

$

144,38
97,76¢
2.1z

0.8C
1,117,72:
400,00(
405,68°
9.34
46,14t

304,28t
202,66:¢
4.07

0.7¢C
971,411
200,00(
546,04t
$ 11.4(
49,78

$

241,06¢
160,98
3.0z
0.4C
888,91¢
200,00(
464,73t
9.24
53,33(

$

$

616,54:
158,08
106,68
1.91
0.4C
780,00:
84,80(
485,36¢
8.8¢
55,88«

@ The Summary of Selected Financial Data should &é ire conjunction with the Consolidated Financi@t&ments and the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for mattersaffatt the comparability of the information presshabove.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Eagle Materials Inc. is a diversified producer afic building materials and construction produsisduin residential, industrial,
commercial and infrastructure construction. We afiem four business segments: Gypsum Wallboarthe®g Recycled Paperboard, and
Concrete and Aggregates, with Gypsum Wallboard@ewhent being our principal lines of business. Thgmrations are conducted in the U.S.
and include the mining of gypsum and the manufactnd sale of gypsum wallboard, the mining of litnee and the manufacture, production,
distribution and sale of Portland cement (a basitstruction material which is the essential bindimgredient in concrete), the manufacture
sale of recycled paperboard to the gypsum wallboatdstry and other paperboard converters, theddatadymix concrete and the mining i
sale of aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gratieBe products are used primarily in commergidl r@sidential construction, public
construction projects and projects to build, expand repair roads and highways. Certain informafiioreach of Concrete and Aggregates is
broken out separately in the segment discussions.

We conduct one of our cement operations througtind yenture, Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP, whidbcated in Buda,
Texas (the “Joint Venture”). We own a 50% inteiaghe joint venture and accounts for its intergsder the equity method of accounting.
However, for purposes of the Cement segment infoomg@resented, we proportionately consolidate5% share of the Joint Venture’s
revenues and operating earnings, which is the wayagement organizes the segments within the Confpanyaking operating decisions and
assessing performance. See Note (G) of the Notibe tGonsolidated Financial Statements for addifisegment information.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year 2008

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 Change
RevenuesV $ 754,92t $ 910,33¢ 17%
Operating Cost§) 646,92 726,12 (11)%
Operating Profi 108,00: 184,21 (41)%
Corporate General and Administrati 16,90: 18,75¢ (10)%
Interest Expense, n 28,92( 21,07« 37%
Earnings Before Income Tax 62,18: 144,38: 57%
Income Taxe: 20,41¢ 46,61¢ 571%
Net Earnings $ 41,76¢ $  97,76¢ (57%
Diluted Earnings per Sha $ 09t $ 2.12 (55)%

@ Includes intersegment revenues and our proporeostare of our Joint Venture. See Footnote (G)édonsolidated Financial
Statements for more information.

Net Revenues. Consolidated net revenues for fiscal 2009 were dbwb from fiscal 2008 primarily due to lower saledumes in
all four of our operating segments. The declinsdles volumes was due primarily to the downturinéresidential and commercial sectors,
which continued to be adversely impacted by thdinkedn the overall economic environment in the tgédiStates. Additionally, the decline in
sales volumes adversely impacted the average lestmaces in our Gypsum Wallboard and Concretefsggtegates segments.
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Other Income, net. Included in net revenues are other income, whictsists of a variety of items that are non-segmeetating in
nature and includes income from sales of clinken-mventoried aggregates income, gypsum wallbdéstlibution center income, asset sales
and other miscellaneous income and cost itemsotlier income totaled $3.6 million for fiscal 200®@mpared to $1.5 million for fiscal
2008. The increase in other income during fisc@®i8 due primarily to the $2.6 million gain onesaf railcars by our gypsum wallboard
division.

Operating Costs. Operating costs decreased during fiscal 2009, epaced to 2008, principally due to lower productiomur
gypsum wallboard and cement divisions. Additionadigrtain operating costs declined, both in tosalvall as on a per unit basis, namely fiber
in our recycled paperboard division, natural gasunrecycled paperboard and gypsum wallboard idivés and transportation in our gypsum
wallboard division.

Operating Profit. Operating profit declined by 41% during fiscal 2089 compared to fiscal 2008, primarily due to lonet
revenues, as described above. The decline in netues was offset partially by the reduction inrafiag expenses.

Corporate General and Administrative. Corporate general and administrative expensesdcalf2009 were $16.9 million compared
to $18.8 million for last fiscal year. Corporatengeal and administrative expense in 2009 incluggsaximately $4.0 million related to fiscal
2009 stock options awards, all of which were sutifly expensed in fiscal 2009, offset by a gaintlee early retirement of debt of
approximately $4.4 million. The decrease in corpogeneral and administrative expense in fiscab2@8 compared to fiscal 2008, was
primarily the result of decreased incentive compéina and benefit costs due to lower operatingiegsn

Interest Expense, Net. Net interest expense of $28.9 million for fiscaD0ncreased from the $21.1 million incurred ircéis2008.
The increase in expense is related to increasedwimgs during the period, primarily in connectiwith the $200 million private placement,
which closed in October 2007, offset slightly b #arly repayment of $100 million of private plagsrdebt in February 2009. Interest
expense in fiscal 2008 was positively impactedhgydapitalization of interest related to the carcdton of our Georgetown, S.C. plant. This
plant was completed in December 2007, at which tiraeceased capitalizing interest.

Income Taxes. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 was 32.8%jal was relatively consistent with the tax rat8af3% during
fiscal 2008.

Net Earnings and Diluted Earnings per Share. As a result of the foregoing, pre-tax earnings@&®.8 million in fiscal 2009 were
57% below fiscal 2008 pre-tax earnings of $144.Hioni. Fiscal 2009 net earnings of $41.8 milliorcdmased 57% from net earnings of $97.8
million in fiscal 2007. Diluted earnings per shandiscal 2009 of $0.95 were 55% lower than thel®Zor fiscal 2008.
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The following table highlights certain operatingomnmation related to our four business segments:

For the Years Ended March 31, Percentagt
2009 2008
In thousands except per unit Change
Revenue$)
Gypsum Wallboart $ 279,30t $ 342,55 (19)%
Cement? 289,43¢ 345,22: (16)%
Recycled Paperboa 116,33 133,39! (13)%
Concrete and Aggregat 66,24 87,64( (29)%
Other Income, ne 3,60z 1,53( 135%
Gross Revenue $ 754,92t $ 910,33t 17)%
Sales Volume
Gypsum Wallboard (MMSF 2,102 2,39¢ (12)%
Cement (M TonsP 2,82¢ 3,42t (18)%
Recycled Paperboard (M Tor 232 271 (14)%
Concrete (M Yards 611 802 (24)%
Aggregates (M Tons 3,281 3,75¢ (13)%
Average Net Sales Pric&s
Gypsum Wallboart $ 99.17 $ 108.3¢ (8)%
Cement? 96.0: 96.0¢ —
Recycled Paperboa 492.2% 484.2: 2%
Concrete 73.1¢ 76.7¢ (5)%
Aggregate: 6.57 6.9¢€ (6)%
Operating Earning
Gypsum Wallboart $ 1,19C $ 45,95 (97)%
Cement? 82,03¢ 106,63: (23)%
Recycled Paperboa 16,58! 17,02: ()%
Concrete and Aggregat 4,59t 13,07t (65)%
Other, ne 3,60z 1,53( 135%
Net Operating Earning $ 108,000 $ 184,21«

(M Gross revenue, before freight and delivery costs.
@ Includes proportionate share of our Joint Venture.
@ Net of freight and delivery cost

Gypsum Wallboard Operations. The decrease in revenues during fiscal 2009, apawad to fiscal 2008, is due to lower sales
volume and sales prices. Although the averageales rice for fiscal 2009 declined from the psiear, the average net sales price for fiscal
2009 exceeded the fiscal 2008 average net sales guiring the second quarter of fiscal 2009 angkestat this level for the remainder of the
fiscal year. This increase in average net saleg pvas more than offset by the decline in salesmelas demand in the residential and
commercial sectors continued to be impacted bytwmomic downturn. Wallboard operating margins e@sed during fiscal 2009, as
compared to fiscal 2008, primarily due to loweresalolumes and higher unit costs. The increaseitrcasts during fiscal 2009, as compared
to fiscal 2008, was primarily attributable to inesed raw material and natural gas costs. In additi® operating margins were impacted by a
full year of costs at our Georgetown, South Caeofifant versus a partial year for fiscal 2008.

Cement Operations. The decrease in revenues during fiscal 2009, apaed to fiscal 2008, is due primarily to the 188glahe in
sales volume. The decline in sales volume adveisglacted average sales prices in certain of oukets, although our average sales price
was flat during fiscal 2009, as compared to fiH8. The decline in average sales price and salame was more severe in our lllinois and
Nevada markets, which were more significantly impeddy the economic slowdown experienced duringafi2009. The decline in revent
was the primary reason operating earnings decliyetb% in fiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal 2@@erating costs remained relatively flat
during fiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal 2008hwitly slight increases in the cost of fuel and eoWurchased cement costs also increased
slightly;
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however, the percentage of purchased cement sotdaied to 16% of total cement sold in fiscal 2068 19% of total cement sold in fiscal
2008, with the majority of the purchased cememdeaild by our joint venture.

Recycled Paperboard Operations. Net revenues and sales volume decreased 14% distad)2009, as compared to 2008, due to
lower gypsum paper sales. During fiscal 2009, safeg/psum paper declined to 62% of total paperbsates from 73% during fiscal 2008.
The increase in the average selling price per toing fiscal 2009, as compared to 2008, is prirgatile to the price escalators contained in
long-term sales agreement. Operating margins peintobeased 14% during fiscal 2009, as compar@d®8, due to the decline in unit costs
combined with an increase in the average net ggfiiite per ton. The decrease in unit costs duigogl 2009 is primarily due to a 16%
decrease in fiber costs as compared to fiscal 20t by a 22% increase in electrical costs dyfiscal 2009. The 3% decline in operating
earnings during fiscal 2009, as compared to 2G08ué to lower gypsum paper sales, partially ofigethe increased operating margin per ton.
The decline in gypsum paper sales is due to thingeio the demand for gypsum wallboard, which heslin increased production and sale
lower margin non-gypsum paperboard.

Concrete and Aggregates Operations. The decline in sales volumes during fiscal 2009;ampared to fiscal 2008, was the primary
reason for the decline in revenues of the coneaeteaggregates division. The decline in sales vetualso negatively impacted the net average
sales prices, resulting in declines of 5% and 6#4tfe concrete and aggregates divisions, respégtivefiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal
2008. The decrease in revenues negatively impagterhting earnings during fiscal 2009, as did angkan the sales mix of aggregates to
lower margin road base, which comprise 55% of thal fproduct sold in fiscal 2009 as compared taaxmately 45% in fiscal 2008.

GENERAL OUTLOOK

The United States government has recently takeeraksteps to assist the country in recovering ftloenrecession that began in
December 2007. The U.S. has passed the Troublext Redief Program (“TARP”), aimed at shoring up toeintry’s financial institutions fror
the credit crisis that began during the latter békalendar 2008. In addition, during the firsager of calendar 2009, Congress passed The
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009inadus package with spending of up to $787 billidnportion of the stimulus package
for infrastructure projects; however, most of tirpact of the stimulus bill on the construction iafty is not expected to be realized until
calendar 2010. While the TARP program is contindmgrovide liquidity to the country’s banks, thestdl is significant concern with the
capitalization level of many of the largest bankkhough we expect the current administration tatouwie to proactively address the current
financial crisis throughout the remainder of cal@m?009 there can be no assurance as to the aopeit that these legislative initiatives, or
any other similar governmental programs, will hameour business, financial condition or resultepérations.

The continued downturn in the residential and coneirakconstruction markets, coupled with the coctican of credit from the
marketplace, is expected to continue to negativepact the entire U.S. wallboard industry by redgdhe demand for gypsum wallboard
nationwide. The reduction in demand has causedstnglaapacity utilization to decline to approxinté5%, negatively impacting sales
prices. Wallboard consumption during the first qeaof calendar 2009, as reported by the Gypsunodason, decreased approximately 29%
from calendar year 2008, and the annualized consompumber for calendar 2009 is expected to be B8#bw total consumption for calenc
2008. Based on the estimated annualized consumigtiaralendar 2009, average industry capacityzatiion is estimated to be below 55% for
calendar 2009.

Cement consumption in the US declined approximéitébs in calendar 2008 to approximately 106.0 millghort tons, as
compared to consumption of approximately 126.0iamlshort tons during calendar 2007. The U.S. cennelustry continues to reduce impc
of foreign cement with imports declining to 12%tofal consumption during calendar 2008, as comptar@d % of total consumption in
calendar 2007. Cement demand in most U.S. regiomnties to be impacted by decreasing residemiasing construction, the softening
commercial construction market and state budgetitefwhich will hinder cement consumption

26



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

during the remainder of calendar 2009. The U.S.dBuwent has included increased infrastructure spgras part of the stimulus package
passed during the first quarter of calendar 2009dver, the effects of these expenditures arexueated to begin until calendar 2010. The
Portland Cement Association estimates that cenmrgwmption for calendar 2009 will decrease appraxéhy 18% to approximately

88.0 million short tons before any positive impfiotn the recently announced stimulus bill occur& &pect the contraction in cement
consumption to impact all of the markets servediycement plants throughout the remainder of cle2009.

Sales of gypsum paper as a percentage of totafl pafztecontinue to decline as low wallboard demiznekpected to continue
throughout the remainder of fiscal 2010. Salesyplsgm paper comprised approximately 62% of totpkepaales during fiscal 2009, as
compared to approximately 73% during fiscal 20@8yéver, the addition of our Georgetown, South Gasolvallboard plant has kept
paperboard sales to our gypsum wallboard divisieady at approximately 35% of total tons sold. Lotetal sales volumes of gypsum paper
are expected to continue during fiscal 2010, butamsinue to seek opportunities for sales in newketa as well as supplying product to the
high performance containerboard market. Our majerating costs, such as fiber and natural gasraetliuring fiscal 2009. Due to the
worldwide recession, we do not expect significastéases in the cost of fiber during the first lndi€alendar 2009. We continue to closely
monitor the price and consumption of fiber, el@ityiand natural gas as these costs comprise disg portion of our total production costs.

We expect aggregate and concrete sales volumesdegressed throughout the remainder of calend# i20both of our markets
as bothresidential and infrastructure spending remain, softl any impact from stimulus bill most likely Wilot be realized until calendar 20

Fiscal Year 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year 2007

For the Years Ended March 31,

2008 2007 Change
RevenuesV) $ 910,33¢ $ 1,062,88: (14)%
Operating Cost§) 726,12¢ 732,82! ()%
Operating Profi 184,21 330,06: (49)%
Corporate General and Administrati 18,75¢ 20,34« (8)%
Interest Expense, n 21,074 5,42¢ 28&%
Earnings Before Income Tax 144,38 304,28t (53)%
Income Taxe: 46,61¢ 101,62 (54)%
Net Earnings $ 97,76¢ $ 202,66 (52)%
Diluted Earnings per Sha $ 21z  $ 4.07 (48)%

@ Includes intersegment revenues and our proporeostare of our Joint Venture. See Footnote (G)ddonsolidated Financial
Statements for more information.

Consolidated Results. Consolidated net revenues for fiscal 2008 were dd®éb from fiscal 2007 primarily due to lower sapgices
and sales volumes in the Gypsum Wallboard segriésttal 2008 operating earnings of $184.2 millioordased 44% from our record setting
amount of $330.1 million last fiscal year mainlyedio decreased Gypsum Wallboard operating earnings.

Corporate Overhead. Corporate general and administrative expenseddalf2008 were $18.8 million compared to $20.3ianil
for last fiscal year. The decrease was primarig/résult of decreased incentive compensation anefiveosts due to lower operating earnings.

Other Income. Other income consists of a variety of items thatrasn-segment operating in nature and includekealigales
income, non-inventoried aggregates income, gypsaitbward distribution center income, asset salesather miscellaneous income and cost
items.
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Net I nterest Expense. Net interest expense of $21.1 million for fiscaD80wvas $15.7 million more than the $5.4 millionuned in
fiscal 2007. The increase in expense is relatadaily to the increased borrowings in connectiothwie $200 million private placement,
which closed in October 2007 and the accrual @&fregt expense on our unrecognized tax benefitathah dispute pending our tax audit.

Income Taxes. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 decrease82®% from 33.4% primarily due to the increasegagt of

depletion on lower earnings.

earnings per share in fiscal 2007 of $2.12 were #8%¢r than the $4.07 for fiscal 2007.

Net Income. As a result of the foregoing, pre-tax earnings 454 million in fiscal 2008 were 53% below fis@48l07 pre-tax
earnings of $304.3 million. Fiscal 2008 net earging$97.8 million decreased 52% from net earnofg&202.7 million in fiscal 2007. Diluted

The following table highlights certain operatindomnmation related to our four business segments:
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Includes proportionate share of our Joint Venture.
Net of freight and delivery cost

28

For the Years Ended March 31,

2008

2007

In thousands except per uni

Percentagt

Change
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Gypsum Wallboard Operations. The decrease in revenues during fiscal 2008 as amdpo fiscal 2007 is due to lower sales vol
and sales prices. Sales prices decreased throufigalt2008 as demand, particularly in residert@hebuilding and repair and remodel
activities, declined sharply. This decline in deahaamlong with additions to capacity in the gypsualliaoard industry, resulted in decreased
utilization and pricing. Wallboard operating marghecreased during fiscal 2008 as compared td 28€% primarily due to lower sales prices
and higher unit costs. The increase in unit cogtsg fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 wamnaxily attributable to increased raw
material costs and costs associated with the gpaof production at our Georgetown, South Carafitzent during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2008.

Cement Operations. Revenues increased during fiscal 2008 as comparksical 2007, primarily due to increased salesins.
Sales prices also increased during fiscal 200®agared to fiscal 2007, primarily due to price eages implemented in most of our markets
during April 2007. Operating earnings and operatigygins increased during fiscal 2008 as compardiddal 2007 primarily due to increased
sales prices, coupled with increased sales voluaitsgt slightly by higher purchased cement costilitionally, our sales mix was positively
impacted by the increased production at lllinoisn@at Company in fiscal 2008 as compared to fis6@lr2which reduced our percentage of
sales of low margin purchased cement to 19% imfig008 as compared to 26% in fiscal 2007.

Recycled Paperboard Operations. Net revenues increased by 5% during fiscal 200®aspared to 2007 primarily due to increases
in the average selling price per ton. The incréaske average selling price per ton during fi@08 as compared to fiscal 2007 is due
primarily to price escalators contained in our kiagnm sales agreement. Operating margins declineédgifiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal
2007 primarily due to the increase in unit costsicly was offset slightly by an increase in aversales price per ton. The increase in unit costs
during fiscal 2008 is primarily due to a 28% inaedn fiber costs and an 11% increase in natuiatgats during fiscal 2008 as compared to
fiscal 2007. Also, a change in the mix of prodwszil during fiscal 2008 negatively impacted opeatnargins. During fiscal 2008, sales of
higher margin gypsum paper declined to 73% of fe#glerboard production from 79% during fiscal 20his decline is due primarily to the
decline in demand for gypsum wallboard, and redutédncreased production and sales of lower madigéarboard.

Concrete and Aggregates Operations. Declining sales volumes during fiscal year 2008thesprimary reason for the decline in
revenues for both concrete and aggregates dusnglf2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Declinesmntiete revenues were partially offset by
increased sales price per yard in fiscal 2008, enié average net sales price of aggregates vadivedy flat. Concrete operating margins
increased slightly during fiscal 2008, despite é&ased unit costs during the year. The increaseerage sales price per yard in fiscal 2008 was
partially offset by the increase in unit costs dgrfiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Theeiase in unit costs is due primarily to the
increase in the price of cement and delivery cdsting fiscal 2008. Aggregates operating margirdided during fiscal 2008 as compared to
fiscal 2007 due to increased crushing and plartscpartially offset by increased sales prices.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Certain of our critical accounting policies requine use of judgment in their application or requéstimates of inherently uncertain
matters. Although our accounting policies are impbance with generally accepted accounting prilesipa change in the facts and
circumstances of the underlying transactions ceigdificantly change the application of the accaumpolicies and the resulting financial
statement impact. Listed below are those polidias we believe are critical and require the useoofiplex judgment in their application.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We assess long-lived assets in accordance witprthasions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for thghkirment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS. 44 requires that long-lived
assets be reviewed for impairment whenever everthanges in circumstances indicate that the aagrgimount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measuyembmparing the carrying amount of an asset toréutundiscounted net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. These evaluatiof®pairment are significantly impacted by
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estimates of revenues, costs and expenses andattans. If these assets are considered to beiiethdahe impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amotitite assets exceeds the fair value of the assets

Goodwill. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other InfalegAssets,” goodwill is no longer subject to atization. Rather,
goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessfoeimpairment by applying a fair-value-based.t¥ge have elected to test for goodwill
impairment in the first quarter of each calendary@he goodwill impairment test is a two-step j@ss; which requires management to make
judgments in determining what assumptions to usbkercalculation. The first step of the processsin of estimating the fair value of e¢
reporting unit based on a discounted cash flow resiag revenues and profit forecasts and compdhaoge estimated fair values with the
carrying value; a second step is performed, if sg@gy, to compute the amount of the impairmentdigrthining an “implied fair value” of
goodwill. Similar to the review for impairment ofheer long-lived assets, evaluations for impairmestsignificantly impacted by estimates of
future prices for our products, capital needs, eadn trends and other factors.

Environmental Liabilities. Our operations are subject to state, federal arel Environmental laws and regulations, which ingpos
liability for clean up or remediation of environmehpollution and hazardous waste arising from patt and require pollution control and
prevention, site restoration and operating perarity/or approvals to conduct certain of its operstidVe record environmental accruals wh
is probable that a reasonably estimable liabilag been incurred. Environmental remediation acsraied based on internal studies and
estimates, including shared financial liability vihird parties. Environmental expenditures thaeed the life, increase the capacity, improve
the safety or efficiency of assets or mitigate i@vpnt future environmental contamination may hgtaized. Other environmental costs are
expensed when incurred.

Estimation of Reserves and Valuation Allowances. We evaluate the collectibility of accounts receledbased on a combination of
factors. In circumstances when we are aware o€aifsp customer’s inability to meet its financidbl@ation to the Company, the balance in the
reserve for doubtful accounts is evaluated, afitdsfdetermined to be deficient, a specific amowifitbe added to the reserve. For all other
customers, the reserve for doubtful accounts isrdehed by the length of time the receivables ast due or the customer’s financial
condition.

Income Taxes. In determining net income for financial statememtgowses, we must make certain estimates and judgriretne
calculation of tax provisions and the resultantliakilities, and in the recoverability of deferreak assets that arise from temporary differences
between the tax and financial statement recogndfaevenue and expense.

In the ordinary course of business, there may beyrtransactions and calculations where the ultineteoutcome is uncertain. The
calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing Witincertainties in the application of complex taws. We recognize potential liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues in both the U.S. aatd ¢ax jurisdictions based on an estimate ofittimate resolution of whether, and the extent
to which, additional taxes will be due. Although bedieve the estimates are reasonable, no assutandee given that the final outcome of
these matters will not be different than what Bered in the historical income tax provisions audruals.

As part of our process for preparing financialestag¢nts, we must assess the likelihood that ourmeféax assets can be recovered.
If recovery is not likely, the provision for taxewust be increased by recording a reserve in the @dra valuation allowance for the deferred
assets that are estimated not to be ultimatelyezable. In this process, certain relevant critar@evaluated including the existence of
deferred tax liabilities that can be used to abslafierred tax assets, the taxable income in peargthat can be used to absorb net operating
losses and credit carrybacks, and taxable incorfiigtime years. Our judgment regarding future tagabtome may change due to market
conditions, changes in U.S. tax laws and otheofacfThese changes, if any, may require materjakadents to the deferred tax assets and an
accompanying reduction or increase in net incontberperiod when such determinations are made.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow.
The following table provides a summary of our cistvs:

For the Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitit $ 79,38t $ 104,75:
Investing Activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Assi 3,99¢ —
Capital Expenditures and Other Investing Activitiest (16,07¢) (96,857
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti (12,082 (96,85))
Financing Activities:
Excess Tax Benefit- Share Based Paymet 65E 2,84¢
Increase in Notes Payat 55,00( —
Addition to Lon¢-term Debt, ne — 200,00(
Repayment of Lor-term Debi (95,000 —
Retirement of Common Stot — (176,89Y)
Dividends Paic (30,44 (35,600
Proceeds from Stock Option Exercit 1,321 3,491
Net Cash Used in Financing Activiti (68,465 (6,150
Net Increase (Decrease) in C: $ (1,167) $ 1,74¢

Cash flows from operating activities declined by $2million during fiscal 2009 from fiscal 2008. i§ldecrease was largely
attributable to decreased net earnings, which medlby approximately $56.0 million. This decreases wartially offset by our $21.2 million
decrease in operating assets and liabilities agpaoed to the $46.2 million decrease in fiscal 2@&creases in operating assets and liabilities
in fiscal 2009 are due primarily to decreased antopayable, due to lower purchased cement andddsts. Decreases in operating assets anc
liabilities in fiscal 2008 are due primarily to thayment of $45.8 million to the Internal Revenegevi&e (“IRS”) in relation an audit of our
fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003 tax years.

The IRS issued its Exam Report and Notice of Pregdsdjustment to the Company in November 2007 phaposes to disallow a
portion of the depreciation deductions claimedh®y €ompany during fiscal years ended March 31, 22002 and 2003. The adjustment
proposed by the IRS, if sustained, would resuétdditional federal income taxes of approximately.$2million, plus penalties of $5.7 million
and applicable interest, and would result in addéi state income taxes, including applicable ggeand penalties. The Company is pursuing
an administrative appeal and, if necessary, wabreto the courts for a final determination. Tran@any paid the IRS approximately $45.8
million during November 2007, including $27.6 nolti in federal income taxes, the $5.7 million fongkies and $12.5 million of interest, to
avoid additional imposition of the large corportete underpayment interest rates. See Notes (FfH)naf the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

Net cash used in investing activities decreasé&i®1 million in fiscal 2009 as compared to $96iBiom in fiscal 2008. This
decline is primarily due to the completion of ouedBgetown, South Carolina wallboard plant durisgdl 2008. Amounts spent during fiscal
2009 were primarily related to maintenance capital.

Net cash used in financing activities increase$i&®.5 million during fiscal 2009, primarily due borrowings associated with the
early retirement of a portion of our senior no#s.a result of the early retirement, we recordegtegain of approximately $4.4 million. Duri
fiscal 2008, we had positive
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financing cash flows from the issuance of $200iorilin Series 2007A Senior Notes, offset by $1#6iion of share repurchases. Our debt-
to-capitalization ratio and net-debt-to-capitaliaatratio were 45.3% and 44.1%, respectively, atdi1, 2009 as compared to 49.6% and
48.4%, respectively, at March 31, 2008.

Working capital at March 31, 2009, was $111.0 willcompared to $83.9 million at March 31, 2008mawily due to decreases in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, offdghtlly by a decrease in accounts and notes redeivillle do not have any material contractual
obligations related to long-term capital projedt§/arch 31, 2009. We were in compliance at March2®D9 with all the terms and covenants
of our credit agreements.

Debt Financing Activities.

We entered into a $350.0 million credit facility December 16, 2004. On June 30, 2006, we amenddslathk Credit Facility (the
“Bank Credit Facility”) to extend the expirationtddrom December 2009 to June 2011, and to rechecbdrrowing rates and commitment
fees. Borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility guaranteed by all major operating subsidiarieth@fCompany. Outstanding principal
amounts on the Bank Credit Facility bear interést eariable rate equal to LIBOR, plus an agreedgingranging from 55 to 150 basis poin
which is to be established quarterly based uporiCtirapany’s ratio of consolidated EBITDA, which isfithed as earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, to its cadatéd indebtedness. Interest payments are pagaiiéhly or at the end of the LIBOR
advance periods, which can be up to a period ofigirths at the option of the Company. Under thekBamedit Facility, we are required to
adhere to certain financial and other covenantdydting covenants relating to the Company’s inteceserage ratio and consolidated funded
indebtedness ratio. At March 31, 2009, the Compet/$288.0 million of borrowings available undez Bank Credit Facility.

We entered into a Note Purchase Agreement on Nogefri 2005 (the “2005 Note Purchase Agreemenié)ed to our sale of
$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designate8eries 2005A Senior Notes (the “Series 2005Ac8&lotes”) in a private placement
transaction. The Series 2005A Senior Notes, whietgaaranteed by substantially all of our subsié&mwere sold at par and issued in three
tranches on November 15, 2005. On February 5, 2089epurchased $7.0 million in principal of thei8& 2005A Senior Notes for $6.7
million, leaving $193.0 million outstanding. Follavg the repurchase, the amounts outstanding fdr efithe three tranches are as follows:

Principal Maturity Date Interest Rate
Tranche A $38.6 millior November 15, 201 5.25%
Tranche B $77.2 millior November 15, 201 5.3%
Tranche C $77.2 millior November 15, 201 5.4&%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semisally on May 15 and November 15 of each yedl alhprincipal is paid for
the respective tranche.

We entered into an additional Note Purchase Agreeom October 2, 2007 (the “2007 Note Purchase égent”) related to our
sale of $200 million of senior, unsecured notesjgleated as Series 2007A Senior Notes (the “S2063A Senior Notes”) in a private
placement transaction. The Series 2007A Seniord\etkich are guaranteed by substantially all ofsulbsidiaries, were sold at par and issued
in four tranches on October 2, 2007. On FebruaB0B9, we repurchased $93.0 million in principatief Series 2007A Senior Notes for $88.3
million, leaving $107.0 million outstanding. Follavg the repurchase, the amounts outstanding fdr ebithe four tranches are as follows:

Principal Maturity Date Interest Rate
Tranche A $ 9.5 million October 2, 201 6.06%
Tranche E $11.0 millior October 2, 201 6.27%
Tranche C $50.0 millior October 2, 201 6.36%
Tranche C $36.5 millior October 2, 201 6.4&%
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Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable samisally on April 2 and October 2 of each yearlwitiprincipal is paid for the
respective tranche.

Our obligations under the 2005 Note Purchase Agee¢mand the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement (coltdgtreferred to as the
“Note Purchase Agreements”) and the Series 2005%088lotes and the Series 2007A Senior Notes (ciively referred to as “the Senior
Note¢”) are equal in right of payment with all other BRhunsecured debt of the Company, including @btdinder the Bank Credit Facility.
The Note Purchase Agreements contain customanyctest covenants, including covenants that placet$ on our ability to encumber our
assets, to incur additional debt, to sell assetsy merge or consolidate with third parties, adl @a® certain cross covenants with the Bank
Credit Facility.

Other than the Bank Credit Facility, we have nceotdource of committed external financing in pldoghe event the Bank Credit
Facility was terminated, no assurance can be gageo our ability to secure a new source of finagcConsequently, if a balance was
outstanding on the Bank Credit Facility at the tiofié¢ermination, and an alternative source of feiag cannot be secured, it would have a
material adverse impact on us. None of our detsted by the rating agencies.

We do not have any off balance sheet debt excemtpferating leases. Also, we have no outstandiig gigarantees. We have
available under the Bank Credit Facility a $25 millLetter of Credit Facility. At March 31, 2009evinad $7.0 million of letters of credit
outstanding that renew annually. We are contingdiatble for performance under $8.7 million in pmrhance bonds relating primarily to our
mining operations.

We believe that our cash flow from operations available borrowings under our Bank Credit Facistyould be sufficient to meet
our currently anticipated operating needs, capitglenditures and dividend and debt service req@nesifor at least the next twelve months.
However, our future liquidity and capital requirememay vary depending on a number of factorsuitioly market conditions in the
construction industry, our ability to maintain cdmpce with covenants in our Bank Credit Facilitye level of competition and general and
economic factors beyond our control. These andratbeelopments could reduce our cash flow or regtiat we seek additional sources of
funding. We cannot predict what effect these fectaitl have on our future liquidity. For additionaformation on factors impacting our
liquidity and capital resources, please refer ta Rdtem 1A, “Risk Factors” above.

Cash Used for Share Repurchases and Stock Repurchase Program.

See table under Item 5. “Market for Registrant’sr@mon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and IsBugchases of Equity
Securities” on page 20 for additional information.

On November 7, 2006, we announced that our BoaRirettors authorized the repurchase of an additiéi156,800 shares of
common stock, raising our repurchase authorizatapproximately 6,000,000 shares, of which 717 f@dfained available at March 31, 20
Share repurchases may be made from time-to-tinfeeiopen market or in privately negotiated trarieast The timing and amount of any
repurchases of shares will be determined by thegaolyis management, based on its evaluation of rharigeeconomic conditions and other
factors. Repurchases may also be effected pursuatdans or instructions that meet the requiremehiule 10b5-1 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. We did not repurchase anyeshduring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 r&¥perchased 4,778,500 shares and
2,706,791 shares of Common Stock at a cost of $1¥i8lion and $100.4 million during the fiscal yaagnded March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Dividends.

Dividends paid in fiscal years 2009 and 2008 wé&@.4 million and $34.7 million, respectively. DugiNovember 2008, we
announced a decrease in our annual dividend fraB0$0 $0.40 per share, beginning with the Febr@@89 dividend payment. Each quarte
dividend payment is subject to review and appréwyabur Board of Directors, and we will continueetealuate our dividend payment amount
on an ongoing basis.
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Capital Expenditures.
The following table compares capital expenditures:

For the Fiscal Years Endec

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Land and Quarrie $ 366 $ 65¢
Plants 11,90¢ 90,39¢
Buildings, Machinery and Equipme 3,80z 5,801
Total Capital Expenditure $ 16,07¢ $ 96,85

Historically, we have financed such expenditurethwash from operations and borrowings under oulving credit facility.
Capital expenditures in fiscal 2009 were primafily maintenance, while the majority of our cap&apenditures during fiscal 2008 related to
the completion of our construction of a gypsum wadird plant in Georgetown, South Carolina. The vetd plant was completed in
December 2007 and was fully operational at Marchi2BD8. We expect capital expenditures during fi2640 to be consistent with the ama
spent in fiscal 2009.

Contractual and Other Obligations.

The Company has certain contractual obligatiorsragifrom indebtedness, operating leases and pseabiaigations. Future
payments due, aggregated by type of contractuéjativn are set forth as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc
Less thar More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Long-term Debt/Notes Payab $355,000 $ — $55,00C  $38,60C  $261,40(
Operating Lease 12,53 1,33¢ 1,35( 88¢€ 8,95¢
Purchase Obligatior 74,85( 5,31 12,33: 10,72¢ 46,47¢

Total $442,38. $6,651 $68,68° $50,217  $316,83:

Purchase obligations are non-cancelable agreenteptgchase coal, natural gas and synthetic gypgupay royalty amounts and
capital expenditure commitments. Additionally, we aubject to potential tax liabilities of approxtaly $83.9 million which may be payable
in a 1 to 3 year period. See Notes (D) and (HhefNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Based on our current actuarial estimates, we aatieimaking contributions of approximately $1.&105 million to our defined
benefit plans for fiscal year 2010.

Inflation and Changing Prices.

The Consumer Price Index rose approximately 0.1%aiendar 2008, 4.1% in 2007, and 2.5% in 200&eBrof materials and
services, with the exception of power, natural gas), petroleum coke, and transportation freightje remained relatively stable over the tl
year period. During fiscal 2009, the Consumer Pinckex for energy and transportation declined agpiprately 23% and 13% respective
Strict cost control and improved productivity inrmement and paperboard segments in fiscal 2008hivésnized the impact of inflation on o
operations, while our other segments remain mopesed to inflationary changes. The ability to irmG® sales prices to cover future increases
varies with the level of activity in the constrtiindustry, the number, size, and strength of agitgrs and the availability of products to
supply a local market.
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GENERAL OUTLOOK

See “General Outlook” within Item 7. Managementisdission and Analysis of Financial Condition aresits of Operations on
pages 26- 27.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
See Note (A) to the Notes to the Consolidated FiizStatements on pages 41-46.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information included in this report or ither materials we have filed or will file with tI8£C, as well as information
included in oral statements or other written staets made or to be made by us, contains or mawicoftrward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 3,98ection 21E of the Securities Exchange Act &418nd the Private Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements may be fifiex by the context of the statement and gengialise when we are discussing our
beliefs, estimates or expectations. From timente tiforward-looking statements also are includeolinother periodic reports on Forms 10-K,
10-Q and 8-K, press releases and presentatiormjroneb site and in other material released tgthi#ic. We specifically disclaim any duty to
update any of the information set forth in thisapincluding any forward-looking statements. Fardrlooking statements are made based on
management’s current expectations and beliefs comzefuture events and, therefore, involve a nundieisks and uncertainties.
Management cautions that forward-looking statemargsnot guarantees, and our actual results caffédt thaterially from those expressed or
implied in the forward looking statements. See Itefnfor a more detailed discussion of specific siskd uncertainties.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are exposed to market risks related to fluabnatin interest rates on our Bank Credit Facilisom time-to-time we have
utilized derivative instruments, including intereate swaps, in conjunction with our overall stgytéo manage the debt outstanding that is
subject to changes in interest rates. At March2B09 outstanding borrowings under the Bank CredlitilFy totaled $55.0 million. At present,
we do not utilize derivative financial instruments.

The Company is subject to commodity risk with redpe price changes principally in coal, coke, naltgas and power. We atter
to limit our exposure to changes in commodity gibg entering into contracts or increasing usdtefraative fuels.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Financial Information

Index to Financial Statements and Related Inforomati

Eagle Materials Inc.:

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Yeade& March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2(
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002608

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows from the srfEaded March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the Years Ended March 22009, 2008 and 20(
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm

Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP

Statement of Operations for the Years Ended DeceBhe2008, 2007 and 20!

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and

Statement of Changes in Partr’ Capital for the Years Ended December 31, 2008 &0d
Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended DeceB81he008, 2007 and 20t
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Report of Independent Audito
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REVENUES

Gypsum Wallboart

Cement

Paperboar:
Concrete and Aggregat
Other, ne

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gypsum Wallboart

Cement

Paperboar:

Concrete and Aggregat

Corporate General and Administrati
Interest Expense, n

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

EQUITY IN EARNINGS OF UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURE

EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income Taxe:!

NET EARNINGS
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic
Diluted

AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDINGS:

Basic
Diluted

CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

37

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009

2008

2007

$ 279,30t $ 342,55( $ 511,61
187,15 239,02¢ 235,71
66,78: 79,85( 74,66:
65,33¢ 86,59¢ 95,86(
3,60z 1,53( 4,54
602,18 749,55! 922,40:
278,11 296,59¢ 313,53(
137,54 166,37¢ 176,30(
50,20: 62,82¢ 55,66/
60,74 73,51¢ 79,61
16,90: 18,75¢ 20,34«
28,92( 21,074 5,42¢
572,42! 639,15! 650,87¢
32,42¢ 33,98: 32,76¢
62,18: 144,38 304,28t
20,41¢ 46,61¢ 101,62

$ 41,76« $ 97,76¢ $ 202,66
$ 0.9¢ $ 2.1% $ 4.1%
$ 0.9t $ 2.12 $ 4.07
43,486,72 45,557,09 49,090,01
43,897,41 46,145,21 49,787,11
$ 0.6C $ 0.8C $ 0.7¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
Current Asset-
Cash and Cash Equivalel
Accounts and Notes Receivable,
Inventories
Prepaid and Other Asse
Total Current Asset
Property, Plant and Equipme-
Less: Accumulated Depreciatis
Property, Plant and Equipment, 1|
Notes Receivabl
Investment in Joint Ventul
Goodwill and Intangible Asse
Other Asset:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities-

Accounts Payabl

Accrued Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debi
Other Lon¢-term Liabilities
Deferred Income Taxe

Total Liabilities

Stockholder’ Equity —

(dollars in thousands)

Preferred Stock, Par Value $0.01; Authorized 5,000,Shares; None Issu

Common Stock, Par Value $0.01; Authorized 100,00@ Shares; Issued and Outstanding 43,589,77!

43,430,297 Shares, respective
Capital in Excess of Par Vali
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los
Retained Earning

Total Stockholdel' Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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March 31,

2009 2008
$ 17,79¢ $ 18,96(
44,26 62,94¢
107,06 98,71
6,161 8,48(
175,28: 189,10¢
1,089,61! 1,079,74.
(419,669 (374,18
669,94 705,55t
6,301 7,28¢
39,52 40,09t
152,81. 153,44¢
22,81( 22,22¢
$1,066,66¢ $1,117,72.
$ 19,64 $ 50,96!
44,60« 54,21(
64,24¢ 105,17:
355,00( 400,00(
97,10« 86,44’
122,48t 120,41t
638,84 712,03
43€ 434
11,16¢ —
(6,040 (1,369
422,26! 406,62
427,82 405,68’
$1,066,66¢ $1,117,72.
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Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Earnings
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net CaslviBed by Operating Activities, Net of
Effect of Nor-Cash Activity-
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortizati
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipn
Gain on Purchase of Debt, r
Deferred Income Tax Provisic
Stock Compensation Expen
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Vent
Excess Tax Benefits from Share Based Payment Aeraegts
Distributions from Joint Ventur
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilit
Accounts and Notes Receival
Inventories
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilit
Other Asset:
Income Taxes Payab

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipm
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equip!
Additional Investment in Joint Ventu
Purchase of Illinois Cement 50% J.V. Intel

Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Excess Tax Benefits from Share Based Payment Aerargts
Increase in Note Payak
Proceeds from Lor-term Debt
Repayment of Lor-term Debt
Dividends Paid to Stockholde
Retirement of Common Stot
Proceeds from Stock Option Exercit

Net Cash Used in Financing Activiti

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT S
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended March 31,

2009

2008

2007

$41,76: $ 97,76¢  $ 202,66
51,23: 44,85( 40,04(
(2,536) — —
(4,769) — —
5,76¢ 1,414 (2,437)
9,19: 5,94¢ 5,521

(32,426) (33,98:) (32,76%)
(65F) (2,84%) (4,147)
33,00( 37,75( 29,00(
19,67: 15,52 8,30¢
(8,346) (19,809) (11,109)
(33,94/) (10,65¢) 3,42¢
(1,965) (3,509) (3,037)
3,39( (27,69 6,957
79,38¢ 104,75: 242 42:
(16,079 (96,857 (136,86
3,99¢ — —
— — (12,25()
— — (3,000
(12,08:) (96,85) (152,119
65E 2,84¢ 4,141
55,00 — —
— 200,00 —
(95,000) — —
(30,44:) (35,60() (34,665
— (176,89) (100,376
1,321 3,497 3,04¢
(68,46%) (6,150  (127,85)
(1,167) 1,74¢ (37,557)
18,96( 17,21 54,76¢
$17,79¢ $ 18,96( $ 17,21F
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Balance March 31, 200¢

Net Earnings

Stock Option Exercise

Tax Benefi-Stock Option Exercis
Dividends to Stockholdel

Share Based Activit

Retirement of Common Sto
Accrued Pension Benefit Liabilit
Decrease in Unfunded Pension Liabi

Balance March 31, 200

Net Earnings

Stock Option Exercise

Tax Benefi-Stock Option Exercis
Dividends to Stockholdel

Share Based Activit

Retirement of Common Sto

Cumulative effect of the adoption of FIN .

Increase in Unfunded Pension Liabil

Balance March 31, 200¢

Net Earnings

Stock Option Exercise

Tax Benefi-Stock Option Exercis
Dividends to Stockholdel

Share Based Activit

Increase in Unfunded Pension Liabil

Balance March 31, 200¢

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(dollars in thousands)

Accumulated
Other

Common o Comprehensive
Capital in
Excess of Retained
Stock Par Value Earnings Losses Total

$ 508 $ — $465,63¢ $ (1,409 $ 464,73t
— — 202,66 — 202,66
3 3,042 — — 3,04¢
— 4,141 — — 4,141
— — (34,247 — (34,247
— 5,521 — — 5,521
(27) (12,709 (87,645 — (100,376
— — — 14z 14z
— — — 412 412
$ 47¢ $ —  $54641 $ (850)  $ 546,04
— — 97,76¢ — 97,76¢
3 3,49¢ — — 3,491
— 2,84¢ — — 2,84¢
— — (35,900) — (35,900)
— 5,94¢ — — 5,94¢
(48) (12,29  (164,55¢) — (176,89
= = (37,109 = (37,109
— (51€) (51€)
$ 434 $ — $406,62. $ (1,36¢) $ 405,68
_ - 41,76¢ — 41,76¢
2 1,31¢ — — 1,321
— 65E — — 65E
= = (26,120 = (26,120
— 9,197 — — 9,192
— — — (4,677) (4,677)
$ 43€ $11,16¢ $42226¢ $ (6,040 $427,82°

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(A) Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentatio—

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Eagle Materials Inc. and its majorityr@d subsidiaries (“EXP8r the
“Company”), which may be referred to as “our”, “wet “us”. All intercompany balances and transawtibave been eliminated. EXP is a
holding company whose assets consist of its investsiin its subsidiaries, joint venture, intercompbalances and holdings of cash and cash
equivalents. The businesses of the consolidatagpgace conducted through EXP’s subsidiaries. Tha@amy conducts one of its cement plant
operations through a joint venture, Texas Lehigm&at Company L.P., which is located in Buda, Texas “Joint Venture”). Investments in
the Joint Venture and affiliated companies owneh 80 less are accounted for using the equity mettietcounting. The Equity in Earnings
of Unconsolidated Joint Venture has been includedhfe same period as our March 31 year end.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethiea U.S. requires managem
to make estimates and assumptions that affecepherted amounts of assets and liabilities and asces of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the regainounts of revenues and expenses during theirepperiod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents —

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly ligudestments with original maturities of three manth less and are recorded at
cost, which approximates market value.

Accounts and Notes Receiva—

Accounts and notes receivable have been showrf tie¢ allowance for doubtful accounts of $3.7 roifliat both March 31, 2009
and 2008. We perform ongoing credit evaluationswfcustomers’ financial condition and generallguiee no collateral from our customers.
The allowance for non-collection of receivablebased upon analysis of economic trends in the naigin industry, detailed analysis of the
expected collectibility of accounts receivable tha past due and the expected collectibility afrall receivables. We have no significant
credit risk concentration among our diversifiedtouoser base.

The majority of notes receivable at March 31, 2B68rs interest at the prime rate plus 0.5%, angayable in quarterly
installments of $0.2 million, with any unpaid amtsrplus accrued interest, due on October 17, ZDid notes are collateralized by certain
assets of the borrower, namely property and equiprifée current portion of notes receivable wa4d $illion at both March 31, 2009 and
2008. The weighted-average interest rate at Matcl2@09 and 2008 was 3.9% and 5.8%, respectively.
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Inventories—

Inventories are stated at the lower of average (@odtiding applicable material, labor, depreciatiand plant overhead) or market.
Inventories consist of the following:

March 31,

2009 2008

(dollars in thousands)
Raw Materials and Materi«in-Progres: $ 32,58( $27,21:
Gypsum Wallboart 9,622 6,82
Finished Cemer 11,30: 11,89
Aggregates 11,68¢ 11,22¢
Paperboari 4,14: 5,67
Repair Parts and Suppli 36,42¢ 32,23
Fuel and Cos 1,30: 3,64¢

$107,06:  $98,71:

Property, Plant and Equipme—

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cagjoiMenewals and improvements are capitalizeddapdeciated. Repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciatpmovided on a straight-line basis over the estid useful lives of depreciable assets and
totaled $50.0 million, $43.6 million and $38.8 riwh for the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 afid 2@spectively. Raw material deposits
are depleted as such deposits are extracted fduption utilizing the units-of-production methodosEs and accumulated depreciation
applicable to assets retired or sold are elimin&t@d the accounts and any resulting gains or base recognized at such time. The estimated
lives of the related assets are as follows:

Plants 20 to 30 yeal
Buildings 20 to 40 yeal
Machinery and Equipmel 3 to 25 yeal

We periodically evaluate whether current eventsimumstances indicate that the carrying valueusfdepreciable assets may not
be recoverable. At March 31, 2009 and 2008, managebelieves no events or circumstances indicatettie carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Impairment or Disposal of Lor-Lived Assets —

We evaluate the recoverability of our long-livedets and certain identifiable intangibles, sucheasits and customer contracts,
for impairment whenever events or changes in cigtantes indicate that the carrying amount of aetasay not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets, such as plants, buildargsmachinery and equipment, is measured by cangptire carrying amount of an asset to
future undiscounted net cash flows expected todmeigted by the asset. Such evaluations for imgairiere significantly impacted by
estimates of future prices for our products, capigds, economic trends in the construction sectdrother factors. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to begeized is measured by the amount by which the/iteyamount of the assets exceeds their
fair value. Assets to be disposed of by sale dteated at the lower of their carrying amount dr falue less cost to sell.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets —

Goodwill. Goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessfoeimpairment by applying a fair-valusased test. We have electe!
test for goodwill impairment in the first quartdreach calendar year. The goodwill impairment igst two-step process, which requires us to
make judgments in determining what assumptionséoini the calculation. The first step of the precamnsists of estimating the fair value of
each reporting unit based on a discounted cashrfiodel using revenues and profit forecasts and eoimgp those estimated fair values with
the carrying value; a second step is performeggdessary, to compute the amount of the impairtmgdietermining an “implied fair value” of
goodwill. Similar to the review for impairment ofheer long-lived assets, evaluations for impairmestsignificantly impacted by estimates of
future prices for our products, capital needs, eadn trends and other factors. Given the relatieakness in gypsum wallboard pricing,
coupled with the slowdown in residential housing, @xpect to perform impairment tests at the erehoh quarter on our gypsum wallboard
assets and related goodwill during fiscal 2010es®lve determine that impairment loss is not resslgrikely to occur.

March 31, 2009
Amortization Accumulated

Period Cost Amortization Net
(dollars in thousands)

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortizatic

Customer contrac 15years $ 1,30 $ (725) ¢ 577
Permits 40 years 22,00( (2,280) 19,72(
Goodwill 132,51! — 132,51!
Total intangible assets and goodv $155,81! $ (3,009 $152,81.
March 31, 2008
Amortization Accumulated
Period Cost Amortization Net

(dollars in thousands)
Intangible Assets Subject to Amortizatic

Customer contrac 15years $ 1,30 $ (63€) $ 664
Permits 40 years 22,00( (2,730 20,27(
Goodwill 132,51! — 132,51!
Total intangible assets and goodv $155,81! $ (2,36€) $153,44¢

Amortization expense of intangibles was $0.6 millfor each of the years ended March 31, 2009, 20@82007.

Other Assets —
Other assets are primarily composed of loan feddiaancing costs, deferred expenses, and deposits.

Stock Repurchases —

Our Board of Directors has approved the repurcbasecumulative total of 31,610,605 shares, of Wwhapproximately 717,300
shares remain available for repurchase at Marc@19. We did not repurchase any shares duringeheended March 31, 2009. We
repurchased and retired 4,778,500 and 2,706,792sbaCommon Stock at a cost of $176.9 million &h€0.4 million during the years ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Income Taxe—

We provide for deferred taxes on the differenceaween the financial reporting basis and tax bakassets and liabilities using
existing tax laws and rates. We also recognizeréutax benefits such as operating loss carry falsjaas applicable, to the extent that
realization of such benefits is more likely than.no

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatian K8, ‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an tptetation of FASI
Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 provides gaitte on the financial statement recognition andseremnent of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 rexguihat we recognize in the financial statemehgsjrpact of a tax position, if that position is
more likely than not of being sustained on auditdd on the technical merits of the position. FB\Nakso provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitingterim periods, disclosures, and transitionvisions. The transition adjustment recognized
on the date of adoption is recorded as an adjudttoertained earnings as of the beginning of thepéon period. We adopted FIN 48 on
April 1, 2007. See Note (F) for a discussion ofithpact of FIN 48.

Revenue Recogniti—

Revenue from the sale of cement, gypsum wallbqeaperboard, concrete and aggregates is recognized title and ownership
are transferred upon shipment to the customer. feee$ipping and handling are recorded as revemwhie costs incurred for shipping and
handling are recorded as expenses.

We classify our freight revenue as sales and ftaights as cost of goods sold, respectively. Apprately $82.6 million, $101.7
million and $105.5 million were classified as cosgoods sold in the years ended March 31, 20088 2ld 2007, respectively.

Other net revenues include lease and rental incasset sale income, non-inventoried aggregates seeme, distribution center
income and trucking income as well as other miaoelbus revenue items and costs which have notdileeated to a business segment.

Comprehensive Income/Losses —
A summary of comprehensive income for the fiscargeended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is preséelew:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Net Earnings $41,76¢ $97,76¢ $202,66¢
Other Comprehensive Income , net of 1
Pension Plan Actuarial Loss, net of (4,672 (51€) —
Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment — — 142
Comprehensive Incomn $37,09: $97,25( $202,80¢

As of March 31, 2009, we have an accumulated atbemprehensive loss of $6.0 million, which is netrmfome taxes of $3.3
million, in connection with recognizing the differee between the fair value of the pension assetshenprojected benefit obligation.
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Statements of Consolidated Earnings — SupplemBigalosures —

Selling, general and administrative expenses obfiexating units are included in costs and expeofeach segment. Corporate
general and administrative (“G&A”) expenses incladininistration, financial, legal, employee bersefind other corporate activities and are
shown separately in the consolidated statemergamiings. Corporate G&A also includes stock comatmis expense. See Note (J) for more
information. During fiscal 2009, we had a gain amghase of long-term debt that has been recordadeduction of Corporate G&A on the
Consolidated Statement of Earnings. See Note (Dnfire information.

Total selling, general and administrative experisesach of the periods are summarized as follows:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Operating Units Selling, G&/ $30,49: $37,14:  $38,93¢
Corporate G&A 21,30¢ 18,75¢ 20,34
Net Gain on Purchase of Lc-term Debi (4,407) — —

$47,39¢ $55,89¢  $59,28(

Maintenance and repair expenses are included mssgment’s costs and expenses. The Company idc4&5 million, $58.2
million and $63.7 million in the years ended MaBd) 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Consolidated Cash Flows — Supplemental Disclostres

Interest payments made during the years ended Merch009, 2008 and 2007 were $26.9 million, $16il6on and $11.5 million,
respectively.

We made net payments of $12.8 million, $73.5 millamd $97.0 million for federal and state incomeatain the years ended
March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Earnings Per Shar—

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
Weighte-Average Shares of Common Stock Outstani 43,486,72 45,557,09. 49,090,01
Common Equivalent Share

Assumed Exercise of Outstanding Dilutive Optit 846,93 1,341,69. 1,492,04!
Less Shares Repurchased from Proceeds of Assuneediged Option§) (559,669 (820,27() (866,629
Restricted Stock Unit 105,41¢ 66,70¢ 71,68
Weighte-Average Common and Common Equivalent Shares Oulisig 43,879,41 46,145,21 49,787,11

@ Includes unearned compensation related to outsigreiock options.

There were 2,865,700, 1,631,037 and 144,807 stptres at an average exercise price of $38.70,1%4and $49.73 that were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings ghare for the years ended March 31, 2009, 2002607, respectively, because such
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.
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New Accounting Standar+

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement aifn€ial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Pdalue
Measurements” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines failue, establishes a framework for measuring fdirevan accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and expands disdesabout fair value measurements that are rehairpermitted under other accounting
pronouncements. In April 2008, the FASB issued FAR&T Position FAS157-2 “Effective Date of FASBag&ment 157" (“FSP FAS 157-2"),
which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 fomnalhrecurring fair value measurements of non-firdrassets and liabilities until fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008. We adopted SE&Seffective April 1, 2008, including the adoptiofithe deferral provisions of FSP
FAS 157-2, and this adoption did not have a mdteffact on our results of operations or financiahdition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalncabilities —Including
an Amendment of FASB Statement 115" (“SFAS 1595AS 159 permits entities to choose to measureipditeancial instruments and other
eligible items at fair value that do not currerriyuire fair value measurement. SFAS 159 is effedbr fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We elected not to fair valuarfirial instruments and certain other items und&SSE59 upon adoption on April 1, 20C
therefore, there was no impact on our results efatpns or financial condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositieAS107-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Valud-afancial
Instruments” (“FSP FAS 107-1"), which requires dlistires about the fair value of financial instrutsemhenever summarized financial
information for interim reporting periods is issuddhis disclosure should include the methods agdifitant assumptions used to estimate the
fair value of the financial instruments, as welld@scribe changes in such methods and significsunaptions, if applicable. FSP FAS 107-1
will be effective for interim reporting periods eéngd after June 15, 2009.

Reclassification—

Certain prior year balances, primarily prepaid exgas and deferred taxes, have been reclassifigel ¢consistent with the current
year presentatiot

(B) Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost by major category and accumulated depreciatiersummarized as follows:

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Land and Quarrie $ 62,78: $ 62,94(
Plants 949,63! 928,17!
Buildings, Machinery and Equipme 77,19: 74,59!
Construction in Progres — 14,03¢
1,089,61! 1,079,74.

Accumulated Depreciatic (419,669 (374,18
$ 669,94 $ 705,55t

Construction in progress relates primarily to comstruction of the gypsum wallboard facility in Ggetown, South Carolina which
began during May 2006 and was completed during bbee 2007.
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(C) Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses at March 31, 2009 and 2008 cafdis¢ following:

March 31,

2009 2008

(dollars in thousands)
Payroll and Incentive Compensati $10,81¢  $15,37:
Benefits 9,152 8,87¢
Interest 7,31( 10,39:
Insurance 5,66¢ 5,67:
Other 11,66 13,90(

$44,60:  $54,21(

(D) Indebtedness
Long-term Debt is set forth below:

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Senior Note: $300,00(  $400,00(
Bank Credit Facility 55,00( —
Less Current Maturitie — —
Total Lon¢-term Debi $355,00(  $400,00(

The weighted-average interest rate of Senior Nateg fiscal 2009 and 2008 was 5.9% and 5.7% eespely. The weighted
average interest rate of Senior Notes at Marct2829 and 2008 was 5.7% and 5.9%, respectively.

The weightedaverage interest rate of bank debt borrowings duigtal 2009, 2008 and 2007 was 2.4%, 6.9% andré8pectively
The interest rate on the bank debt was 1.7% andtO%arch 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Maturities of long-term debt during the next fivechl years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2010 $ =
2011 —
2012 55,00(
2013 38,60(
2014 —
Thereaftel 261,40(
Total $355,00(
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Senior Notes -

We entered into a Note Purchase Agreement on Nosefrl) 2005 (the “2005 Note Purchase Agreemenidjed to our sale of
$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designate8eries 2005A Senior Notes (the “Series 2005Ac8&lotes”) in a private placement
transaction. The Series 2005A Senior Notes, whietgaaranteed by substantially all of our subsié&mwere sold at par and issued in three
tranches on November 15, 2005. On February 5, 2009¢epurchased $7.0 million in principal of thei&g 2005A Senior Notes for $6.7
million, leaving $193.0 million outstanding. Follavg the repurchase, the amounts outstanding fdr efithe three tranches are as follows:

Interest

Principal Maturity Date Rate
Tranche A $38.6 millior November 15, 201 5.25%
Tranche B $77.2 millior November 15, 201 5.3%
Tranche C $77.2 millior November 15, 201 5.4&%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable samisally on the 1%day of May and the 18day of November of each year until
all principal is paid for the respective tranche.

We entered into an additional Note Purchase Agreewmre October 2, 2007 (the “2007 Note Purchase é&gent”) related to our
sale of $200 million of senior, unsecured notesjgleated as Series 2007A Senior Notes (the “S2€83A Senior Notes”) in a private
placement transaction. The Series 2007A Seniord\etkich are guaranteed by substantially all ofsubsidiaries, were sold at par and issued
in four tranches on October 2, 2007. On FebruaB089, we repurchased $93.0 million in principatraf Series 2007A Senior Notes for $88.3
million, leaving $107.0 million outstanding. Follavg the repurchase, the amounts outstanding fdr efithe four tranches are as follows:

Interest

Principal Maturity Date Rate
Tranche A $ 9.5 million October 2, 201 6.0&%
Tranche B $11.0 millior October 2, 201 6.27%
Tranche C $50.0 millior October 2, 201 6.3¢%
Tranche C $36.5 millior October 2, 201 6.4&%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semisally on the second day of April and the seamdof October of each year
until all principal is paid for the respective tcde.

Our obligations under the 2005 Note Purchase Agea¢m@nd the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement (coldgtreferred to as the
“Note Purchase Agreements”) and the Series 20058088lotes and the Series 2007A Senior Notes (ciVely referred to as “the Senior
Note¢") are equal in right of payment with all other BBnunsecured debt of the Company, including abtdinder the Bank Credit Facility.
The Note Purchase Agreements contain customanyctést covenants, including covenants that placit$ on our ability to encumber our
assets, to incur additional debt, to sell asset) merge or consolidate with third parties, a#l a® certain cross covenants with the Bank
Credit Facility. We were in compliance with all éincial ratios and tests at March 31, 2009 and titrout the fiscal year.

Pursuant to a Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, satislig all of our subsidiaries have guaranteedgbectual payment of all
principal, interest, and Make-Whole Amounts (asrdef in the Note Purchase Agreements) on the Sélites and the other payment and
performance obligations of the Company containetthénSenior Notes and in the Note Purchase Agretméfe are permitted, at our option
and without penalty, to prepay from time to timéeatst 10% of the original aggregate principal anmtai the Senior Notes at 100% of the
principal amount to be prepaid, together with ieg¢raccrued on such amount to be prepaid to tecdgtayment, plus a Maké&thole Amount
The Make-Whole Amount is computed by
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discounting the remaining scheduled payments efést and principal of the Senior Notes being fteaha discount rate equal to the sum of
50 basis points and the yield to maturity of UrBasury securities having a maturity equal to #meaining average life of the Senior Notes
being prepaid.

Bank Deb*-

We entered into a $350.0 million credit facility December 16, 2004. On June 30, 2006, we amenddslathk Credit Facility (the
“Bank Credit Facility”) to extend the expirationtddrom December 2009 to June 2011, and to rechecbdrrowing rates and commitment
fees. Borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility guaranteed by all major operating subsidiarieth@fCompany. Outstanding principal
amounts on the Bank Credit Facility bear interést eariable rate equal to LIBOR, plus an agreedgingranging from 55 to 150 basis poin
which is to be established quarterly based upoiCtirapany’s ratio of consolidated EBITDA, which isfihed as earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, to its cadatéd indebtedness. Interest payments are pagaii¢hly or at the end of the LIBOR
advance periods, which can be up to a period ofigirths at the option of the Company. Under thekBamedit Facility, we are required to
adhere to certain financial and other covenantduding covenants relating to the Company’s inteceserage ratio and consolidated funded
indebtedness ratio. At March 31, 2009 the Compaty$3288.0 million of borrowings available under Baenk Credit Facility.

The Bank Credit Facility has a $25 million lettércoedit facility. Under the letter of credit faityl, the Company pays a fee at a per
annum rate equal to the applicable margin for Eoifadloans in effect from time to time plus a divee letter of credit fee in an amount equal
to 0.125% of the initial stated amount. At March 3009, we had $7.0 million of letters of creditgtanding.

(E) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of our long-term debt has been esttdah based upon our current incremental borrovategsrfor similar types of
borrowing arrangements. The fair value of our SeNiotes at March 31, 2009 is as follows:

Fair Value

(dollars in

thousands
Series 2005A Tranche $ 35,97¢
Series 2005A Tranche 64,50(
Series 2005A Tranche 60,33:
Series 2007A Tranche 8,48(
Series 2007A Tranche 9,40¢
Series 2007A Tranche 41,37¢
Series 2007A Tranche 28,81°¢

All assets and liabilities which are not considefiaencial instruments have been valued using hisibcost accounting. The
carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, ats@nd notes receivable, accounts payable andexttiabilities approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturities of thesetasand liabilities. The fair value of our Banle@it Facility also approximates its carrying
value at March 31, 2009.
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(F) Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes includes the follogvcomponents:

For the Years Ended March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Current Provisior-
Federal $13,26: $39,46¢ $ 96,68¢
State 1,38¢ 5,73¢ 7,37¢
14,65( 45,20: 104,06:

Deferred Provisiol-

Federal 5,377 (4,081) (3,769
State 39¢€ 5,49¢ 1,332
5,76¢ 1,41¢ (2,437)

Provision for Income Taxe $20,41¢  $46,61¢ $101,62:

The effective tax rates vary from the federal stagurates due to the following items:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Earnings Before Income Tax $62,18: $144,38¢ $304,28¢
Income Taxes at Statutory R: $21,76¢ $ 50,53¢ $106,50:
Increases (Decreases) in Tax Resulting f-
State Income Taxes, n 1,16( 7,29¢ 5,31¢
Statutory Depletion in Excess of Ct (2,63¢€) (9,420 (8,339
Domestic Production Activities Deductit (72C) (2,55¢) (2,799
Other 851 761 944
Provision for Income Taxe $20,41¢ $ 46,61¢ $101,62¢
Effective Tax Ratt 33% 32% 33%

The deferred income tax provision results fromftilwing temporary differences in the recognitioivrevenues and expenses for
tax and financial reporting purposes:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)
Excess Tax Depreciation and Amortizat $ 6,981 $ 6,08¢ $ 1,69¢
Bad Debts 82t (28¢) 174
Uniform Capitalizatior a0 (464) 177
Accrual Change (1,522) (1,849 (2,211
Other (605) (2,079) (2,277)

$576¢ $141¢  $(2,43)
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Components of deferred income taxes are as follows:

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Items Giving Rise to Deferred Tax Liabiliti-

Excess Tax Depreciation and Amortizat $148,43. $140,47!
Items Giving Rise to Deferred Tax Ass-

Accrual Change (20,92 (19,400

Bad Debts (1,409 (2,237

Uniform Capitalizatior (80€) (89¢€)

Other (4,365 (404)

Total Deferred Tax Asse (27,502 (22,93))

Deferred income taxes are classified in the codatéd balance sheet as follows:

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Prepaid and Other Asse $ 155¢ $ 2,87/
Deferred Income Taxe $122,48¢ $120,41¢

Uncertain tax positions -

We are subject to audit examinations at federatestnd local levels by tax authorities in thosesglictions who may challenge the
treatment or reporting of any return item. Therzadters challenged by the tax authorities are glfyicomplex; therefore, the ultimate outcc
of these challenges is subject to uncertainty.

Through March 31, 2007, in accordance with priandards, we assessed the ultimate resolution @frtaic tax matters as they
arose and established reserves for tax contingemdien we believed an unfavorable outcome was ptetzand the liability could be
reasonably estimated.

Effective April 1, 2007, we adopted the provisiarig-IN 48, which differs from the prior standardstihat it requires companies to
determine that it is “more likely than not” thata position will be sustained by the appropriatartg authorities before any benefit can be
recorded in the financial statements.

As a result of adopting FIN 48, we increased the¢serves by $84.8 million, from $3.6 million t8&4 million as of April 1,
2007, with the corresponding offset representingnarease in goodwill. As a result of the $84.8liwril increase in the liability for uncertain
tax positions, we recorded a $37.1 million increiaste amount of accrued interest expense as af ApR2007, of which $18.2 million was
recorded in Accrued Liabilities and the remainimgoaint of $18.9 million was recorded in Other Loegat Liabilities. Our policy is to
recognize accrued interest related to uncertaipdsitions as a component of interest expensetaretognize penalties as a component of
income tax expense.

The increase in accrued interest expense resultadiecrease to the April 1, 2007, balance ofmethearnings.
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The following table summarizes the changes in dte sBmounts of uncertain tax positions for 2008ll&ts in thousands):

Balance at April 1, 200 $83,86¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal —
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye: —

Balance at March 31, 20( $83,86¢
Accrued interest recognized during the year endadch31, 200! $ 4,93/
Accrued penalties recognized during the year en@dh 31, 200¢ $ 821

None of the $83.9 million liability for uncertaiax positions as of March 31, 2009, if recognizeduld impact the effective tax
rate. If these tax positions were recognized, ditrag-term liabilities would be reduced by $56.2liom, and we would receive a refund of
$27.6 million related to taxes paid during fisc@08 (see Note (H) for more information). Additiolgalve would reduce other long-term
liabilities by $32.3 million for accrued interestdipenalties on the uncertain tax positions. Siaggenalties are recognized as a component of
income tax expense, future penalty accruals arautesn of uncertain tax positions will impact ceffective tax rate.

As of March 31, 2009, we may be assessed additfedalal and state income taxes, interest and pesébr tax years 2001
through 2008. We have filed an administrative appéh the IRS for the 2001 through 2003 examinat@ars. Returns for the years 2004
through 2006 are currently under audit by the IR& appeal proceeding and audit field work shoeld¢dampleted within the next twelve
months.

We currently are unable to estimate the range s$ipte increase or decrease in uncertain tax pasithat may occur within the
next twelve months from the eventual outcome ofyirs currently under audit or appeal, and theeafannot anticipate whether such
outcome will result in a material change to ouafinial position or results of operations.

(G) Business Segments

Operating segments are defined as componentsaftarprise that engage in business activitiesahat revenues, incur expenses
and prepare separate financial information thaveduated regularly by our chief operating decisitaker in order to allocate resources and
assess performance.

We operate in four business segments: Gypsum Wallh@ement, Recycled Paperboard, and Concretdgagates, with
Gypsum Wallboard and Cement being our principadiof business. These operations are conductée id.6. and include the mining of
gypsum and the manufacture and sale of gypsum @&l the mining of limestone and the manufactoreduction, distribution and sale of
Portland cement (a basic construction material wiiche essential binding ingredient in concretted, manufacture and sale of recycled
paperboard to the gypsum wallboard industry andrgtaperboard converters, the sale of readymixretmand the mining and sale of
aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gravel). Phedects are used primarily in commercial and msiidl construction, public construction
projects and projects to build, expand and repeids and highways.
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As further discussed below, we operate five gypstwaitboard plants, a gypsum wallboard distributiemter, four cement plants,
eleven cement distribution terminals, a recyclegigpboard mill, nine readymix concrete batch planations and two aggregates processing
plant locations. The principal markets for our catq@goducts are Texas, northern lllinois (includ®@igicago), the Rocky Mountains, northern
Nevada, and northern California. Gypsum wallboard @ecycled paperboard are distributed throughweitbntinental U.S. Concrete 8
aggregates are sold to local readymix producergawihg contractors in the Austin, Texas area athern California.

We conduct one of our four cement plant operatidiesas Lehigh Cement Company LP in Buda, Texasutir a Joint Venture.
For segment reporting purposes only, we proportapaonsolidate our 50% share of the Joint Vensurevenues and operating earnings,
which is consistent with the way management reghesegments within the Company for making opegatiecisions and assessing
performance.

The Company accounts for intersegment sales atenhprices. The following table sets forth certaimafcial information relating
the Company’s operations by segment:

For the Years Ended March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Revenue:-

Gypsum Wallboart $279,30t $342,55( $ 511,61
Cement 289,43t 345,22! 321,85:
Paperboari 116,33 133,39t 127,54!
Concrete and Aggregat 66,24 87,64( 97,32:
Other, ne 3,60z 1,53( 4,54

754,92¢ 910,33¢ 1,062,88:
Less: Intersegment Revent (57,099 (63,645 (63,959
Less: Joint Venture Revenu (95,649 (97,140 (76,527)

$602,18: $749,55! $ 922,40:

For the Years Ended March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Intersegment Revenu-

Cemeni $6,632 $905 $ 9,61
Paperboar 49,55t 53,54¢ 52,88
Concrete and Aggregat 90¢ 1,04¢ 1,462

$57,09¢  $63,64F  $63,95¢

Cement Sales Volumes (M tor-

Wholly-Owned 1,85¢ 2,371 2,38¢
Joint Venture: 967 1,04¢ 84¢
2,82¢ 3,42¢ 3,23¢
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For the Years Ended March 31,
2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Operating Earning-

Gypsum Wallboart $ 1,19 $ 45,95/ $198,08!
Cement 82,03¢ 106,63: 92,18:
Paperboar 16,58 17,02: 18,99¢
Concrete and Aggregat 4,59 13,07¢ 16,24¢
Other, ne 3,60z 1,53( 4,545
Sut-Total 108,00« 184,21 330,06:
Corporate General and Administrati (16,90 (18,756 (20,349
Earnings Before Interest and Income Ta 91,10 165,45¢ 309,71
Interest Expense, n (28,920 (21,079 (5,429
Earnings Before Income Tax $ 62,180 $ 144,38 $304,28t
Cement Operating Earnin-
Wholly-Owned $ 49,61( $ 72,65! $ 59,417
Joint Venture: 32,42¢ 33,98 32,76t

$ 82,03¢ $ 106,63 $ 92,18:

Identifiable Asset§) -

Gypsum Wallboart $ 489,51¢ $ 516,70t  $392,37"
Cement 317,55! 320,86¢ 309,97-
Paperboari 154,54 174,07 171,73t
Concrete and Aggregat 56,33 62,41( 61,18!
Corporate and Othe 48,72( 43,66¢ 36,14:

$1,066,66! $1,117,72. 971,41(

Capital Expenditure®) -

Gypsum Wallboart $ 3,715 $ 71,18¢ $ 86,94¢
Cement 10,78¢ 18,98¢ 30,20¢
Paperboar 56€ 2,72¢ 5,87¢
Concrete and Aggregat 994 3,82( 13,73
Other, ne 16 137 10z

$ 16,07¢ $ 96,85 136,86¢

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortizatiéh

Gypsum Wallboart $ 23,01¢ $ 18,43¢ $ 16,62:
Cemen 14,18¢ 13,06! 10,88¢
Paperboar: 9,094 8,524 8,32¢
Concrete and Aggregat 4,03: 4,021 3,34t
Other, ne 903 80¢ 85¢

$ 51,230 $ 44,85( $ 40,04(

@ Basis conforms with equity method accounting.
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Segment operating earnings, including the propoatiely consolidated 50% interest in the revenudseapenses of the Joint
Venture, represent revenues less direct operatipgnses, segment depreciation, and segment sejingral and administrative expenses. We
account for intersegment sales at market pricegodate assets consist primarily of cash and cgslvalents, general office assets and
miscellaneous other assets.

The segment breakdown of goodwill at March 31, 2808 2008 is as follows:

For the Years Ended

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Cement $ 8,35¢ $ 8,35¢
Gypsum Wallboart 116,61¢ 116,61¢
Paperboari 7,53¢ 7,53¢

$132,51! $132,51!

(H) Commitments and Contingencies

We have various litigation, commitments and corgimgjes in the ordinary course of business. Manageb@ieves that none of t
litigation in which it or any subsidiary is currgninvolved is likely to have a material adverséeef on our consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

Our operations and properties are subject to extermnd changing federal, state and local lawsjlegipns and ordinances
governing the protection of the environment, ad agllaws relating to worker health and workplaafety. We carefully consider the
requirements mandated by such laws and regulatiod$ave procedures in place at all of our opagatirits to monitor compliance. Any
matters which are identified as potential exposureter these laws and regulations are carefulligvead by management to determine our
potential liability. Although management is not aaf any exposures which would require an acannder generally accepted accounting
principles, there can be no assurance that prifutare operations will not ultimately result inol@tions, claims or other liabilities associated
with these regulations.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) compldteglexamination of our federal income tax retuordtie fiscal years ended
March 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003. The IRS issuedxamBReport and Notice of Proposed Adjustment ondddser 9, 2007, in which it
proposes to deny certain depreciation deducticimeld by us with respect to assets acquired byoas Republic Group LLC in November
2000 (the “Republic Assets”).

If sustained, the adjustment proposed by the IR@ldvesult in additional federal income taxes owgdis of approximately
$27.6 million, plus penalties of $5.7 million anglpdicable interest. Moreover, for taxable yearssaajuent to fiscal 2003, we also claimed
depreciation deductions with respect to the Repubdisets, as originally recorded. If challengedtensame basis as set forth in the Notice of
Proposed Adjustment, additional federal income safeapproximately $39.6 million, plus applicahierest and possible civil penalties, could
be asserted by the IRS for those periods. Alsofiaddl state income taxes, interest, and civilgiges of approximately $9.3 million would be
owed by us for the fiscal years under exam andespent taxable years if the IRS’ position is sudi The IRS examination of federal
income tax returns for fiscal years ended March2804, 2005 and 2006 is currently in process. Sae KF) for more information on the
potential impact of open tax years.
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On December 7, 2007, we filed an administrativeeappf the IRS’s proposed adjustments. On Decerhbe?008 our initial
appeals hearing with the IRS was held. Our appealirently still in process. The Company interasigjorously pursue the appeal and, if
necessary, resort to the courts for a final deteation.

We paid the IRS approximately $45.8 million durldgvember 2007, which is comprised of $27.6 millioriederal income taxes,
$5.7 million for penalties and $12.5 million fotémest, to avoid additional imposition of the lagggporate tax underpayment interest rates. In
the event we reach a settlement with the IRS thrdhg appeals process or in the courts, we wikirgy any accrued interest and penalties in
excess of the negotiated settlement through thedtiolated Statement of Earnings. In the event waiaable to reach a settlement, we believe
we have a substantial basis for our tax positiod,iatend to vigorously contest the proposed adjast in court. At this time, we are unable to
predict with certainty the ultimate outcome or hawch of the amounts paid for tax, interest, ancafiezs to the IRS and state taxing
authorities will be recovered, if any.

We have certain deductible limits under our workemmpensation and liability insurance policies fdriath reserves are establisl
based on the undiscounted estimated costs of kaodranticipated claims. We have entered into statetter of credit agreements to secure
funding obligation on retentions relating to workesompensation and auto and general liability-sedfirance. At March 31, 2009, we had
contingent liabilities under these outstandingelettof credit of approximately $7.0 million.

The following table compares insurance accrualspayinents for our operations:

For the Years Ended

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Accrual Balances at Beginning of Per $ 5,67 $ 5,582
Insurance Expense Accru 3,852 3,401
Payment: (3,860 (3,316)
Accrual Balance at End of Peri $ 5,66¢ $ 5,67

We are currently contingently liable for performanmder $8.7 million in performance bonds requigdertain states and
municipalities, and their related agencies. Thedsare principally for certain reclamation obligat and mining permits. We have
indemnified the underwriting insurance company asfaany exposure under the performance bonds.rlpast experience, no material claims
have been made against these financial instruments.

In the ordinary course of business, we executeract® involving indemnifications that are standarthe industry and
indemnifications specific to a transaction suclih&ssale of a business. These indemnifications himglude claims relating to any of the
following: environmental and tax matters; intellgat property rights; governmental regulations ampleyment-related matters; customer,
supplier, construction contractor and other comiméoontractual relationships; and financial mattéhile the maximum amount to which
may be exposed under such agreements cannot bmtsti it is the opinion of management that thedemnifications are not expected to
have a material adverse effect on the Company’salimtated financial position or results of operatioWe currently have no outstanding
guarantees of third party debt.
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Our paperboard operation, Republic Paperboard CoynplaC (“Republic”), is a party to a long-term papmipply agreement with
St. Gobain pursuant to which Republic is obligatedell to St. Gobain 95% of the gypsum-grade riatipaperboard requirements for three of
St. Gobain’s wallboard plants. This comprises agipnately 25% to 30% of Republic’s current annuatipat of gypsum-grade recycled
paperboard.

We have certain forward purchase contracts, prignfot natural gas, that expire during calendar@0rhe contracts are for
approximately 40% of our expected natural gas usage

We have certain operating leases covering manufagturansportation and certain other facilitiesl @quipment. Rental expense
for fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007 totaled $1ilBom, $2.2 million and $2.2 million, respectivelilinimum annual rental commitments a:
March 31, 2009, under noncancellable leases afersitas follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2010 $1,33¢
2011 $1,03¢
2012 $ 201
2013 $ 11¢
2014 $ 84
Thereaftel $9,76(

(I) Pension and Profit Sharing Plans

We have several defined benefit and defined cantioh retirement plans which together cover suliithty all of our employees.
We are not a party to any multi-employer pensi@npBenefits paid under the defined benefit plangedng certain hourly employees are
based on years of service and the employee’s gimgitompensation over the last few years of empleyt. Our funding policy is to generally
contribute amounts that are deductible for incoaxeprposes.

The annual measurement date is March 31 for thefb@mligations, fair value of plan assets andftireled status of the defined
benefit plans.

The following table provides a reconciliation oétbbligations and fair values of plan assets foofadbur defined benefit plans over
the two year period ended March 31, 2009 and arsttt of the funded status as of March 31, 20028068:

For the Years Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Reconciliation of Benefit Obligatior-

Benefit Obligation at April 1 $16,187  $15,08¢
Service Cos- Benefits Earned During the Peri 55¢ 533
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligat 1,00z 89¢
Plan Amendment — —
Actuarial Loss 82¢ 137
Benefits Paic (48E) (470)
Benefit Obligation at March 3: 18,09 16,18
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Ass-
Fair Value of Plan Assets at April 14,08: 13,78!
Actual Return on Plan Asse (3,786 (523
Employer Contribution 50¢ 1,294
Benefits Paic (48E) (470
Fair Value of Plans at March 3 10,31¢ 14,08:
Funded Statu-
Funded Status at March 2 $(7,779  $(2,109)
Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheet Cons-
Accrued Benefit Liability $(7,772)  $(2,105)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inca 7,772 2,10¢
Net Amount Recognize $ — $ —
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Information for pension plans with an accumulatedéddit obligation in excess of plan assets:

March 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Projected Benefit Obligatia $18,091 $16,18°
Accumulated Benefit Obligatio $17,94 $15,96:
Fair Value of Plan Asse $10,31¢ $14,08:

follows:

Net periodic pension cost for the fiscal years endarch 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, included the ¥dhg components:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Service Cos- Benefits Earned During the Peri $ b55¢ $ 53¢ $ 51¢F
Interest Cost of Projected Benefit Obligat 1,00z 89¢ 83€
Expected Return on Plan Ass (1,119 (1,220 (979)
Recognized Net Actuarial Lo 30¢€ 13C 15¢
Amortization of Prio-Service Cos 142 147 15C

Net Periodic Pension Ca $ 89z $ 58¢ $677

Expected benefit payments over the next five yeard,the following five years under the pensiomgplare expected to be as

Fiscal Years Total
2010 $ 651
2011 $ 691
2012 $ 711
2013 $ 777
2014 $ 89:
2015-2019 $5,63(
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The following table sets forth the assumptions uedte actuarial calculations of the present valfieet periodic benefit cost and
benefit obligations:

March 31,
200¢ 200¢ 2007
Net Periodic Benefit Cos-
Discount Rat¢ 6.C% 6.0% 6.0%
Expected Return on Plan Ass 8.C% 8.C% 8.C%
Rate of Compensation Increz 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
March 31,
200¢ 200¢
Benefit Obligations-
Discount Rat¢ 6.0% 6.0%
Rate of Compensation Incree 3.5% 3.5%

The expected long-term rate of return on plan agsetn assumption reflecting the anticipated weidfaverage rate of earnings on
the portfolio over the long-term. To arrive at théde, we developed estimates of the key compongrsrlying capital asset returns including:
market-based estimates of inflation, real risk-fi@es of return, yield curve structure, credik psemiums and equity risk premiums. As
appropriate, these components were used to debeloghmark estimates of the expected long-term neamegt approach employed by us, and
a return premium was added to the weighted-avdsagehmark portfolio return.

The pension plans’ weighted-average asset allatatidlarch 31, 2009 and 2008 and the range of tatlpeation are as follows:

Percentage o

Plan
Range of Assets at
Target March 31,
Allocation 200¢ 200¢
Asset Categor-
Equity Securities 40- 60% 70% 70%
Debt Securitie! 35-60% 30% 30%
Other 0-5% — —
Total 100%  100%

Our pension investment strategies have been desetlap part of a comprehensive asset/liability mament process that considers
the interaction between both the assets and liisilof the plan. These strategies consider not thiel expected risk and returns on plan assets,
but also the detailed actuarial projections ofiliaés as well as platevel objectives such as projected contributionpease and funded stat

The principal pension investment strategies inclasiet allocation and active asset managementarnige of target asset
allocations have been determined after giving @®rsition to the expected returns of each assed, dlees expected variability or volatility of t
asset class returns over time, and the complenyengédre or correlation of the asset classes witigrportfolio. We also employ an active
management approach for the portfolio. Each asas$ ¢s managed by one or more external money neasmagth the objective of generating
returns, net of management fees that exceed mhdsetd benchmarks. None of the plans hold any EXdk st
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Based on our current actuarial estimates, we gatieimaking contributions of approximately $1.&105 million to our defined
benefit plans for fiscal year 2010.

We also provide a profit sharing plan, which covarbstantially all salaried and certain hourly emgpks. The profit sharing plan is
a defined contribution plan funded by employer difonary contributions and also allows employ@esantribute on an after-tax basis up to
10% of their base annual salary. Employees arg fglsted to the extent of their contributions atiales. Employees become fully vested in
our contributions over a seven year period for Gbations made prior to 2007, and over a six yesaiqu for contributions made beginning in
2007. Costs relating to the employer discretioranmytributions for the Company’s defined contribatjgan totaled $3.3 million, $3.0 million
and $3.1 million in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and20@spectively.

Employees who became employed by us as a resalpadvious transaction are provided benefits snbiatly comparable to those
provided under the seller's welfare plans. Theskane plans included the seller's 401(k) plan whietluded employer matching percentages.
As a result, the Company made matching contribstiorits 401(k) plan totaling $0.1 million for tleeemployees during each of the fiscal y
2009, 2008 and 2007.

(J) Stock Option Plans
The Company accounts for its stock option planseufd\S 123(R) and the associated interpretations.

On January 8, 2004, the Company’s stockholdersoappra new incentive plan (the “Plan”) that is ambined amendment and
restatement of the two existing stock option pldissussed above. The number of shares availableseance under the Plan has not increasec
from, and is the same as, the total combined numfshares available for issuance under the tweckgtans listed above.

LongTerm Compensation Plans -

Options.We granted a target number of stock options dutimge 2007 to certain individuals (the “Fiscal 2@8ck Option Grany’
that may be earned, in whole or in part, if cerfg@nformance conditions are satisfied. The Fis6@B2Stock Option Grant will vest over a
seven year period depending upon the achievemespteafified levels of earnings per share and opgyatarnings. Options are vested as they
are earned, and any options not earned at thefeéhd eeven year period will be forfeited. Thesektoptions were valued at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Gartaher employees that were not included in thgial grant were granted options under
the Fiscal 2008 Stock Option Grant during the fipsarter of fiscal 2009. These awards vest idelhita the original grant, and expire on the
same day as the original grants. The weighted-geesasumptions used in the Black-Scholes moddltewthe option awards in fiscal 2009
are as follows: annual dividend rate of 2.0%, elg@eolatility of 36%, risk free interest rate aB36 and expected life of 6.0 years. We are
expensing the fair value of the options grantefisical 2009 over a five year period, as adjusteckeipected forfeitures.

In early August 2008, we granted options to membétke Board of Directors (the “Fiscal 2009 BoafdDirectors Grant”).
Options granted under the Fiscal 2009 Board ofddims Grant vested immediately, and can be exefdisen the date of grant until their
expiration at the end of seven years. In late Aug088, the Compensation Committee of the Boardigdctors approved an incentive equity
award to certain individuals that may be earnedyhiole or in part, if certain performance condigare satisfied (the “Fiscal 2009 Stock
Option Grant”). The Fiscal 2009 Stock Option Gramat structured to provide shaetrm incentives to address the changed circumsandae
economy and our business since the issuance &ishal 2008 Stock Option Grant. The performancevarsting criteria for the Fiscal 2009
Stock Option Grant
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was based on the achievement of specified levedsuofings before interest, taxes, depreciationsamoktization, as well as achievement of
certain safety metrics for the nine month periodieg March 31, 2009. Under the terms of the optcant, all of the stock options were earned
at March 31, 2009. The options have a term of sgeans, and became vested when earned. Theseogtthaks were valued at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Theighited-average assumptions used in the Black-8stmobdel to value the option awards
granted in fiscal 2009 are as follows: annual divid rate of 2.0%, expected volatility of 36%, riske interest rate of 3.4% and expected lif
6.0 years. We expensed the fair value of the F&e@® Stock Option Grant over the nine month peeioded March 31, 2009, as adjusted for
actual forfeitures.

All stock options issued during fiscal 2009 and 20ere valued at the grant date using the Blackeles option pricing model. T
weighted-average assumptions used in the Blacki€glnoodel to value the option awards in fiscal 2808 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Dividend Yield 2.C% 2.C%
Expected Volatility 36.(% 32.(%
Risk Free Interest Ra 3.4% 4.7%
Expected Life 6.0 year 5.5 year

For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 208&xpensed approximately $7.1 million, $5.4 millemd $3.9 million,
respectively. At March 31, 2009, there was appraxéaty $5.3 million of unrecognized compensatiort celated to outstanding stock options
which is expected to be recognized over a weighiestage period of 5.0 years.

The following table represents stock option agyifitr the years presented:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding Options at Beginning of Y 2,787,04 $34.2¢ 1,636,85 $19.07 1,816,86! $ 15.7¢
Granted 912,91( $27.8¢ 1,457,14i $47.1- 150,36 $ 49.1¢
Exercisec (121,229 $11.01 (281,03) $12.4¢ (263,48) $ 11.5¢
Cancellec (10,29¢) $62.8¢ (25,920 $ 34.17 (66,88¢) $ 25.7¢
Outstanding Options at End of Ye 3,568,43. $33.3:2 2,787,04 $34.2¢ 1,636,85 $19.0i
Options Exercisable at End of Ye 1,995,63: 1,325,171 1,366,74
Weighted Average Fair Value of Options Grantedmtyithe Yea $ 9.07 $ 14.3¢ $ 21.8¢
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The following table summarizes information abowtcktoptions outstanding at March 31, 2009:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining
Number of Contractual Average Number of Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Qutstanding Life Price Outstanding Price
$6.80- $8.15 237,21¢ 174 $ 7.57 237,21 $ 7.57
$9.57- $13.43 394,53 3.71 $12.0¢ 394,53 $12.0¢
$21.52- $29.08 1,103,97! 5.7¢ $26.0¢ 1,100,971 $26.0¢
$34.09- $40.78 416,67( 4.4C $ 37.0¢ 209,87(  $ 38.5(
$47.53- $62.83 1,416,03! 5.3z $48.1( 53,03¢ $62.1(
3,568,43. 49z $33.3: 199563 $23.3]

As of March 31, 2009 there was no aggregate intrivelue of stock options outstanding for non-eisable options. Aggregate
intrinsic value for exercisable stock options onréa31, 2009 totaled $1.9 million.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the totairisic value of options exercised was approxima$dly8 million.

Restricted Stock Unit#\s part of the Fiscal 2009 Stock Option Grant,dhme employees receiving options also received’ %00,
restricted stock units (“RSUSs”). The vesting ciisifior the RSUs are the same as the criteria ®Fikcal 2009 Stock Option Grant and,
accordingly, all of the RSUs were earned and validime vested on August 21, 2009. The RSUs earedukarg expensed over a one year
period. The value of RSUs granted in previous yeab&ing amortized over a three year period fantg to employees and a period not to
exceed ten years for grants to directors. Expeslated to RSUs was approximately $1.9 million, $@iBion and $1.4 million in fiscal years
ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectiveliarch 31, 2009 there was approximately $1.4iomllof unrecognized compensation
cost from restricted stock units that will be recizgd over a weighted-average period of 2.2 years.

Restricted StockVe granted 15,000 shares of restricted stock &ngployee on June 10, 2008. The restricted stockvaiaed at
approximately $0.5 million, based on the closing@of the stock on the date of the grant. Theim&ins lapse in annual increments over a
seven year period, with the expense recognizeblyaterer a seven year period.

Shares available for future stock option and ret&td stock unit grants were 299,687 at March 30920

(K) Hedging Activities

We do not use derivative financial instrumentstfading purposes, but have utilized them in the fmsonvert a portion of our
variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt and to marmagedixed to variable-rate debt ratio. All deriagts, whether designated in hedging
relationships or not, are required to be recordethe balance sheet at fair value. If the deriwaisvdesignated as a cash flow hedge, the
effective portions of changes in the fair valuehaf derivative are recorded in other compreherigsiseme (loss) and are recognized in the
statement of earnings when the hedged item aféastings. Ineffective portions of changes in thievfalue of cash flow hedges are
immediately recognized in earnings.
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(L) Net Interest Expense
The following components are included in interegiense, net:

For the Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Interest Income $ (447  $(1,07H)  $(2,289
Interest Expens 23,931 20,07( 11,27¢
Interest Expens— IRS 4,93¢ 6,401 —
Interest Capitalize — (4,78¢ (3,999
Other Expense 49€ 46C 431
Interest Expense, n $28,92( $21,07¢ $ 5,42¢

Interest income includes interest on investmentsxoéss cash and interest on notes receivable. @wnts of interest expense
primarily include interest associated with the B&rkdit Facility, the Senior Notes, commitment fbased on the unused portion of Bank
Credit Facility and the unrecognized tax benefita¢cordance with FIN 48. Other expenses includertiation of debt issue costs and costs
associated with the Bank Credit Facility and thai&eNotes. Capitalized interest relates to the ennization of our lllinois Cement facility
during fiscal year 2007 and our construction ofypsyim wallboard facility in Georgetown, South Caralduring fiscal years 2007 and 2008
and was calculated by applying our average borrgwudite to the average balance of our constructigoragress account. We ceased
capitalizing interest upon the start-up of the fdan

(M) Stockholders’ Equity

On January 8, 2004, our stockholders approved amdment to our certificate of incorporation to #ese the authorized numbe
shares of capital stock that we may issue from@Q@0 shares of common stock and 2,000,000 sbameferred stock to 100,000,000
shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares dadrpeefstock. The amendment to the Certificate odiporation became effective on
January 30, 2004. Our Board of Directors designd@®&@00 shares of preferred stock for use in caiorewith the Rights Agreement discus:
below.

Effective February 2, 2004, we entered into a Rigkgreement as amended and restated on April 6 @& amended and
restated, “Rights Agreement”) that was approvedtbgkholders at the Special Meeting of Stockholthetd on January 8, 2004. In connection
with the Rights Agreement, the Board authorized dedared a dividend of one right per share of comistock (the “Common Stock”). The
Rights entitle our stockholders to purchase Com@imak (the “Rights”) in the event certain efforte anade to acquire control of the
Company. There are no separate certificates orehéokthe Rights.

The Rights are represented by and trade with oanr@on Stock. The Rights will separate from the Comr8tock upon the earlier
of: (1) a public announcement that a person hasiatjbeneficial ownership of shares of Common IStepresenting in the aggregate 15% or
more of the total number of votes entitled to bgt ceenerally by the holders of Common Stock thestanding, or (2) the commencement of a
tender or exchange offer that would result in apeeneficially owning shares of Common Stockesenting in the aggregate 15% or more
of the total number of votes entitled to be castegally by the holders of Common Stock then outditesn Should either of these conditions be
met and the Rights become exercisable, each Riifjrentitle the holder to buy 1/1,0000f a share of our Preferred Stock at an exercise pr
of $140.00. Each 1/1,0000f a share of the Preferred Stock will essentib#ijthe economic equivalent of three shares of Cam®&tock.
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Under certain circumstances, the Rights entitlehtbiders to buy our stock or shares of the acgsistock at a 50% discount. The
Rights may be redeemed by us for $0.001 per Rigiatime prior to the first public announcemehthe acquisition of beneficial ownership
of shares of Common Stock representing 15% or robtiee total number of votes entitled to be castegally by the holders of Common Stock
then outstanding. If not redeemed, the Rights&yifire on January 7, 2014.

(N) Quarterly Results (unaudited)

For the Years Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(dollars in thousands,

except per share data)

First Quarter -

Revenue! $176,807  $221,23°
Earnings Before Income Tax 10,93: 55,71¢
Net Earnings 7,83( 37,52t
Diluted Earnings Per Sha 0.1¢ 0.717
Second Quarter-
Revenue: 178,93: 210,46:
Earnings Before Income Tax 22,24+ 50,01
Net Earnings 15,64¢ 34,53¢
Diluted Earnings Per Sha 0.3¢ 0.7
Third Quarter -
Revenue: 137,82 173,00!
Earnings Before Income Tax 16,55( 32,07
Net Earnings 11,25¢ 22,45¢
Diluted Earnings Per Sha 0.2¢ 0.5C
Fourth Quarter -
Revenue: 108,85¢ 144,84¢
Earnings Before Income Tax 12,457 6,58:
Net Earnings 7,03( 3,24¢
Diluted Earnings Per Sha $ 01l $ 0.07
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Eagle Materials Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Eagle Materials Inc. and subsididties“Company”) as of March 31, 2009
and 2008, and the related consolidated stateméetrioings, cash flows and stockholders’ equity glach of the three years in the period
ended March 31, 2009. These financial statemeanttharresponsibility of the Company’s managemeat.r@sponsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principded and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrealove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of Eagle
Materials Inc. and subsidiaries at March 31, 200® 2008, and the consolidated results of theiratfmrs and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2008pimormity with U.S. generally accepted accounpnigciples.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated findrst@tements, the Company changed its method éonire tax uncertainties effective April 1,
2007.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Mar31, 2009, based on criteria establisheldt@rnal Control-Integrated Framewoliksued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of treg@ivay Commission and our report dated May 26, 28@8essed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Dallas, Texas
May 26, 2009
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Net sales

Cost of goods sol

Gross margit

Selling, general, and administrative exper

Operating incom

Interest and other incon

Equity in (loss) earnings of joint ventu
Texas margin ta

Net income

See notes to financial statements.

Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP
Statements of Operations

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

(unaudited)
$189,111,19 $177,340,55 $137,906,46
115,934,36 105,717,18 72,506,52
73,176,83 71,623,36 65,399,94
5,079,85! 4,719,57. 4,478,13.
68,096,97 66,903,79 60,921,81
801,06 811,28 5,117,65!
(3,31)) (63,129 60,53¢
(695,72) (703,000 —
$ 68,199,00 $ 66,948,95 $ 66,100,00
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ASSETS

Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance fobtfalaccounts and discounts of $938,(

and $833,16:
Inventories:
Cement

Raw materials and materi-in-process

Parts and supplie

Prepaid asse
Total current asse

Property, plant, and equipme
Land, including quarr
Cement plan
Mobile equipment and oth
Furniture and fixture
Constructiorin-progress

Less accumulated depreciation and deple

Investment in joint ventur
Note receivabl

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ’ CAPITAL
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Partner’ capital:
General Partne’ Capital:
TLCC GP LLC
Lehigh Portland Holdings, LL(
Limited Partner Capital:
TLCC LP LLC
Lehigh Portland Investments, LL
Total partner capital
Total liabilities and partne’ capital

See notes to financial statements.

Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP
Balance Sheets

67

December 31

2008 2007
$ 6,399,57 $ 7,459,144
21,688,27 23,365,01
3,926,03. 2,426,36!
3,882,04 2,097,79
10,510,10 9,330,56!
18,318,18 13,854,72
901,28¢ 815,48
47,307,31 45,494,37
3,752,21! 3,752,21!
103,854,81 103,564,17
4,696,93! 5,036,35:
554,78 499,09¢
342,64( 77,41°
113,201,39 112,929,25
(94,551,96) (91,195,01)
18,649,42 21,734,23
23,294,09 24,497,40
798,02( 826,11
$ 90,048,85 $ 92,552,13
$ 6,900,03! $ 7,806,35!
9,188,92 7,236,18.
161,92¢ 139,67(
16,250,89 15,182,20
73,79¢ 77,37(
73,79¢ 77,37(
36,825,18 38,607,59
36,825,18 38,607,59
73,797,96 77,369,92
$ 90,048,85 $ 92,552,13
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Balance at December 31, 2005 (unaudi
Net income for the yes
Other comprehensive incor
Distribution of earning:

Balance at December 31, 2006 (unaudi
Net income for the yes
Other comprehensive lo
Distribution of earning:

Balance at December 31, 20
Net income for the yes
Other comprehensive lo
Distribution of earning:

Balance at December 31, 20

See notes to financial statements

Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP

Statements of Changes in Partners’ Capital

General Partner¢

Limited Partners’

Capital Capital
Lehigh Lehigh
Portland Portland
TLCC GP Holdings, TLCC LP Investments,
LLC LLC LLC LLC Total
$50,247 $50,24°7 $25,073,18 $25,073,18 $50,246,85
66,10( 66,10( 32,983,90 32,983,90 66,100,00
92 92 45,98: 45,98: 92,15(
(32,000 (32,000 (15,968,00) (15,968,00) (32,000,00)
84,43¢ 84,43¢ 42,135,06 42,135,06 84,439,01
66,94¢ 66,94¢ 33,407,52 33,407,52 66,948,95
(18) (18) (9,009 (9,009 (18,04
(74,000 (74,000 (36,926,00) (36,926,00) (74,000,00)
77,37( 77,37( 38,607,59 38,607,59 77,369,92
68,19¢ 68,19¢ 34,031,30 34,031,30 68,199,00
(1,27)  (1,27) (634,217 (634,21)  (1,270,96)
(70,500 (70,500  (35,179,50) (35,179,50)  (70,500,00)
$73,79¢  $73,79¢ $36,82518 $36,82518 $73,797,96
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Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP
Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and depletic
Gain on sales of equipme
Equity in loss (income) of unconsolidated joint tee
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade accounts receivat
Notes receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid asse
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities and due to affiliatt

Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant, and equipm
Investment in joint ventur
Distributions from joint ventur
Proceeds from sale of equipm

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions of earning
Net cash used in financing activ

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

See notes to financial statements.
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Year ended December 31

2008

2007

2006

(unaudited)

$ 68,199,00 $ 66,948,95 $ 66,100,00
4,121,83: 4,705,34. 4,874,84.
(157,17) (10,727 (987)
3,311 63,12¢ (60,53¢)
2,020,42; (4,229,50) (4,440,291
(315,58)) 11,76¢ (837,88))
(4,463,45) 2,400,80. (4,163,64)
(85,80%) 157,11¢ (252,91)
(906,32() 1,740,04 2,287,20
704,03¢ 1,266,92 95,56:
69,120,27 73,053,85 63,601,36
(1,566,661 (449,94.) (1,648,21)
- — (24,500,00)
1,200,001 — —
686,82! 12,75¢ 20,55¢
320,15¢ (437,189  (26,127,65)
(70,500,00)  (74,000,00)  (32,000,00)
(70,500,00)  (74,000,00)  (32,000,00)
(1,059,57) (1,383,33) 5,473,71.
7,459,14. 8,842,477 3,368,76:
$ 6,399,57 $ 7,459,14. $ 8,842,47
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements

(A) Organization

Texas Lehigh Cement Company (“Texas Lehigh”), aaBeyeneral partnership, was formed June 27, 198pdmte a cement plant
near Austin, Texas. Texas Lehigh was a fifty-fiftint venture between Texas Cement Company (TC@haly owned subsidiary of Eagle
Materials, Inc. (EXP, formerly known as Centex QGanstion Products, Inc.), and Lehigh Portland Cent@mpany (Lehigh). On October 1,
2000, the existing Texas general partnership wasearted to a Texas limited partnership. Subseqtaetiite limited partnership formation, T¢
and Lehigh each contributed a 0.1% interest toneige partner, TLCC GP LLC and Lehigh Portland Huayd, LLC, and a 49.9% interest to a
limited partner, TLCC LP LLC and Lehigh Portland/éstments, LLC. The conversion and subsequentibatitns were done to afford the
former partners additional liability protection.Xes Lehigh Cement Company LP continues to do bsesiae “Texas Lehigh Cement
Company.”

TCC's initial capital contribution consisted of ansent plant and related real property located ideBTexas; four distribution
terminals; various operating agreements, liceresgs,excavation rights; and net working capitalpectied in the joint venture agreement.
Lehigh’s initial capital contribution consisted atistribution terminal and related operating agresets, licenses, inventory, and cash.

In September 2006, Texas Lehigh paid $24.5 millara 15% interest in Houston Cement Company (“H;&’joint venture. HCH
operates two terminals in Houston, Texas. Undeteimas of the joint venture agreement, Texas Lekigmtitled to sell up to 495,000 tons
from the terminals each year.

Due to a number of factors, namely the shared askkrights under the joint venture agreement, $&ehigh accounts for its
investment in HCC using the equity method.

The financial statements and footnote informatimmtlie year ended December 31, 2006 are includecbfaparative purposes and
have not been audited.

(B) Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents -

Cash and cash equivalents include investmentsasiginal maturities of three months or less. Theyiag amount approximates
fair value due to the short maturity of those irtrents.

Inventories-

Inventories are valued at the lower of average apstarket. Cement and materials-in-process inciodeerials, labor, and
manufacturing overhead.

Concentration of Risk -
One customer accounted for 17.5%, 12.8% and 10f58ment sales for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respegtiaald 16.8% and 12.0%

of accounts receivable at December 31, 2008 and, 286pectively.

Notes Receivabl-

The note receivable to Texas Lehigh is securedemg lon various pieces of equipment and bearseisitat LIBOR plus 3%, which
was approximately 6.58% and 8.47% at December@®18 and 2007, respectively. The note is schedwledature in August 2011.
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements
Property, Plant, and Equipme-

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at Tes@s Lehigh’s policy is to capitalize renewals aetterments and to expense
repairs and maintenance when incurred. The costedatbd accumulated depreciation of assets saldtived are removed from the financial
statements, and any gain or loss is recorded énaéat and other income on the statement of opegatiexas Lehigh periodically evaluates
whether current events or circumstances indicatettte carrying value of its depreciable assets n@ye recoverable. At December 31, 2008
and 2007, management believes no events or ciramees indicate that the carrying value may noebeverable.

Depreciation and Depletio-
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line baser the estimated useful lives of the related assdgtich are as follows:

Cement plan 5to 30 yeal
Mobile equipment and oth 2t0 10 yeat

Raw material deposits are depleted as such degosiextracted for production utilizing the unifspopoduction method.

Revenue Recognitic-
Revenue from the sale of cement is recognized witlerand ownership are transferred upon shipmethé customer.

Federal Income Taxe-

No federal income taxes are payable by Texas Lehigth none have been provided for in the accompgrfinancial statements.
The partners are to include their respective sbB@ompany income or loss in their individual t&turns. Texas Lehigh is subject to Texas
margin tax on its income earned in Texas.

Texas Lehigh’s tax return and the amount of allte&@ompany income or losses are subject to examinhy federal and state
taxing authorities. If such examinations resuitlranges to Company income or losses, the taxitiabfl the partners could be changed
accordingly. No such examinations are presentjyratess.

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs -

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EI¥$ue No. 00-10Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Cgpsts
Texas Lehigh classifies its freight revenue asssafel freight cost as cost of goods sold, respagtihpproximately $9,983,446, $8,834,655
and $7,228,898 were classified as cost of goodkisd®008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income -
A summary of comprehensive income for the yeargégkecember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is presented be

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(unaudited)
Net income $68,199,00 $66,948,95 $66,100,00
Other comprehensive incorr
Actuarial change (1,270,961 (18,049 —
Minimum pension liability adjustmen — — 92,15(
Comprehensive incon $66,928,04  $66,930,91  $66,192,15

As of December 31, 2008, Texas Lehigh has anottmmaulated comprehensive loss of $1,565,227 in ection with recognizing
the difference between the fair value of the pamsissets and the projected benefit obligation. &hisunt is excluded from earnings and
reported in a separate component of partners’ alagt“Other Comprehensive Loss”. Texas Lehigh sstbBFAS No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and OthestReiirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statendmt87, 88, 106, and 132(R)”,
effective December 31, 2006.

Use of Estimates -

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosures of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl reported amounts of revenues and expensegjdbsd reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(C) Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses at December 31, 2008 and 200#%tohthe following:

Year ended December 31

2008 2007

Payroll and incentive compensati $3,597,98! $3,297,98
Benefits and insuranc 1,649,81 1,545,90!
Property taxe 1,501,25I 1,454,84.
Other 2,439,87. 937,45.
Comprehensive incorn $9,188,92°  $7,236,18

(D) Purchased Cement

Texas Lehigh purchases cement for resale primirillye Houston, Texas market. Sales of purchasegcewere approximately
$61,587,087, $52,865,877 and $20,458,494, andofastles was approximately $56,773,370, $47,450arm6$17,247,245 for 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements

(E) Pension and Profit Sharing Plans

Texas Lehigh provides a profit sharing plan, ardsdicontribution plan (“401(k) plan”) and a nonadnitory defined benefit
pension plan, which together covers substantidllgraployees and provides specified benefits tdified employees. Texas Lehigh is not a
party to any multi-employer pension plan. Bengfisd under the defined benefit plan cover hourlplelyees and are based on years of service
and the employee’s qualifying compensation oveldeefew years of employment. Texas Lehigh’s fagdbolicy is to generally contribute
amounts that are deductible for income tax purposes

The annual measurement date is December 31 fdrethefit obligations, fair value of plan assets tredfunded status of the
defined benefit plan.

The following table provides a reconciliation oéttiefined benefit pension plan obligations andvaiue of plan assets over the
two-year period ended December 31, 2008 and anstaiteof the funded status as of December 31, 2662807:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007
Reconciliation of Benefit Obligatior
Benefit obligation at January $3,680,37. $3,418,15
Service cos 138,71¢ 133,68
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 216,77( 202,79:
Actuarial gain (loss 146,11¢ (1,29¢)
Benefits paic (74,879 (72,969
Benefit obligation at December ! 4,107,10: 3,680,37.
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assi
Fair value of plan assets at Janua 3,533,06! 3,233,92
Actual return on plan asse (916,31) 164,80(
Employer contribution: 0 207,31:
Benefits paic (74,87 (72,965
Fair value of plan assets at Decembe $2,541,87. $3,533,06!
Funded status at December 31$(1,565,. $(1,565,22) $ (147,300
December 31,
2008 2007
Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheet Cons
Accrued Benefit Liability $(1,565,22) $ (147,309)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Lt 1,565,22 147,30t
Net Amount Recognize $ — 3 —
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements

Information for pension plans with an accumulatedéddit obligation in excess of plan assets:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007
Projected Benefit Obligatio $4,107,10: $3,680,37.
Accumulated Benefit Obligatio $4,082,40. $3,642,88
Fair Value of Plan Asse $2,541,87. $3,533,06!

Net periodic pension cost for the fiscal years e@ndecember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 included thewiolg components:

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(unaudited)
Service cos- benefits earned during the peri $138,71¢ $133,68. $ 133,38
Interest cost of projected benefit obligat 216,77( 202,79: 191,96°
Expected return on plan ass (279,72¢)  (255,77()  (215,02)
Recognized net actuarial lo 49,40 49,84« 86,48t¢
Amortization of prio-service cos 21,78¢ 21,78¢ 21,78¢
Net periodic pension co $ 146,95 $ 152,33t $ 218,60«
Expected benefit payments over the next five yeard,the following five years under the pensiompee expected to be as

follows:

2009 $ 77,98:

2010 86,19(

2011 89,72(

2012 92,95¢

2013 104,79

2014-2018 $771,98:
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Texas-Lehigh Cement Company LP
Notes to Financial Statements

The following table sets forth the rates used adhtuarial calculations of the present value okfieobligations and the rate of
return on plan assets:

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 __2006
(unaudited)
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligatidrtk@annual measurement date w
Obligation discount rat 57%  6.0(% 6.0(%
Compensation increase r: 40% 4.0(% 4.0(%
Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefits were
Obligation discount rat 6.00% 6.0(% 5.7%%
Long-term rate of return on plan ass 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Compensation increase r: 40(% 4.0(% 4.0(%

The expected long-term rate of return on plan agsein assumption reflecting the anticipated weidlaverage rate of earnings on
the portfolio over the long-term. To arrive at thage, Texas Lehigh developed estimates of theckeyponents underlying capital asset returns
including: market-based estimates of inflation| resk-free rates of return, yield curve structure, creidik premiums and equity risk premiur
As appropriate, these components were used toagbeinchmark estimates of expected long-term cdtesturn for each asset class, which
were portfolio weighted.

The pension plan weighted-average asset allocatigaar-end 2008 and 2007 and the range of tanfjets:

Range of Targe Percentage of Plan
Assets at Year-End
Allocation 2008 2007
Asset category

Equity securitie: 40-60% 61% 60%
Debt securitie: 35-60% 37% 37%
Other 0-5% 2% 3%
Total _10(% 100%

Texas Lehigh’s pension investment strategies haea bleveloped as part of a comprehensive asstitffiabanagement process
that considers the interaction between both thetassd liabilities of the plan. These strateg@mssider not only the expected risks and returns
on plan assets, but also the detailed actuarigg@ions of liabilities as well as plan-level olijees such as projected contributions, expense
and funded status.

The principal pension investment strategies inclasiet allocation and active asset managementahige of target asset
allocations have been determined after giving cersition to the expected returns of each assed, ¢tz expected variability or volatility of t
asset class returns over time, and the complenyensdure or correlation of the asset classes witheérportfolio. Texas Lehigh also employs
active management approach for the portfolio. Ezsdet class is managed by one or more externalynmaeagers with the objective of
generating returns, net of management fees thaeexnarket-based benchmarks.
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Although Texas Lehigh does expect to contributigstdefined benefit plan during 2009, the contriutamount is yet
undetermined.

Texas Lehigh also provides a profit sharing plahiclv covers substantially all salaried employeasarA01(k) plan which covers
substantially all employees. Texas Lehigh matchegl@yees’ 401(k) contributions up to 4% of emplayemlaries. Texas Lehigh’s
contributions to the profit sharing and 401(k) @avere approximately $570,683, $548,870 and $583182008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(F) Related-Party Transactions

Texas Lehigh had sales to affiliates of $26,767,883,713,492 and $12,534,734 in 2008, 2007 an@,2@8pectively, of which approximate
$2,963,356 and $2,968,558 is included in trade wuisoreceivable at December 31, 2008 and 2007 .sTesdaigh purchased $2,519,675,
$855,067 and $938,157 of cement from Lehigh in 2@087 and 2006, respectively, and also purcha28@$9,610, $32,454,516 and
$3,014,158 of cement from HCC in 2008, 2007 andb2@8spectively. Texas Lehigh accrued $1,247,136%887,199 for purchased cement
received from these affiliates but not paid fobatember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Texas Lehigh reimburses EXP for certain expensislpaEXP on Texas Lehigh’s behalf. Total paymentse to EXP for reimbursement of
expenses were $1,755,854, $2,147,865 and $2,156458) 2008, 2007 and 2006. At December 31, 20@B2007, Texas Lehigh had accr
liabilities of $133,728 and $120,292, respectivéty,the reimbursement of expenses paid by EXP.

(G) Commitments and Contingencies

Texas Lehigh is involved in certain legal actionisiag in the ordinary course of its business. Mgamaent is of the opinion that all outstanding
litigation will be resolved without material effettt the financial position or results of operati@igexas Lehigh.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Management Committee
Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP

We have audited the accompanying balance sheaeb@sTLehigh Cement Company LP (a Texas limitechpaship) as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, and the related statements of operatibasges in partners’ capital, and cash flowsHentear then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgdsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audist@ndards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements are free dérie misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Compasyihternal control over financial reporting. Oudéuncluded consideration of internal control oVi@ancial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procediln@sare appropriate in the circumstances, bufardhe purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contk@r financial reporting. Accordingly, we expregssuch opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportinguheunts and disclosures in the financial statesp@ssessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, \ealdaing the overall financial statement preseéomatWVe believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedis, financial position of Texas Lehigh Cement
Company LP at December 31, 2008 and 2007, ancethédts of its operations and its cash flows fontéar then ended in conformity with U.S
generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying financial statements as of anth®year ended December 31, 2006 were not auolted and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on them.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 26, 2009
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We have established a system of disclosure cordralgrocedures that are designed to ensure thatialdnformation relating to
the Company, which is required to be discloseddinuhe reports that we file or submit under tieeBities Exchange Act of 1934H%chang:
Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and tedarithin the time periods specified by the SEX@Igs and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to mameent, including our Chief Executive Officer ankli€ Financial Officer, in a timely
fashion. An evaluation of the effectiveness ofdlesign and operation of our disclosure controls@odedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) was performed as of theoétite period covered by this annual report. Bvialuation was performed under the
supervision and with the participation of managemiacluding our CEO and CFO. Based upon that eatadn, our CEO and CFO have
concluded that these disclosure controls and proesdvere effective.

During the Company’s fourth quarter, there weresigmificant changes in internal control over finehceporting that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

All internal control systems, no matter how welkimed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, etherse systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurande rggpect to financial statement preparation ardeprtation.

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIA L REPORTING

The management of Eagle Materials Inc. (the “Compjais responsible for establishing and maintainatpquate internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13&)1&nd 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeddt934. The Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is designed to provides@reable assurance regarding the reliability ofrfaial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting principlee Company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andcgdures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoeasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and dispositions of :
assets of the Compar

» provide reasonable assurance that the transaeiengcorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of thag2my are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management arttdirs of the Company; al

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of th
Compan'’s assets that could have a material effect onitlaadial statement:

Because of inherent limitations, internal contreéofinancial reporting may not prevent or detecstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becwradequate because of changes in condit
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.
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The Company’s management assessed the effectivehtes Company’s internal control over financigporting as of March 31,
2009. In making this assessment, management usexitéria set forth by the Committee of Sponsofrganizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSQO”) innternal Control — Integrated Framework

Based on its assessment using the COSO criterizageanent believes that the Company maintained| imaderial respects,
effective internal control over financial reportjras of March 31, 2009.

The Company'’s independent registered public acaogifirm has issued an attestation report on mamageés assessment of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportimghich immediately follows this report.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Eagle Materials Inc.

We have audited Eagle Materials Inc. and subs&Bannternal control over financial reporting asMérch 31, 2009, based on
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Eagle Materials’imanagement is responsible for maintaining ¢iffednternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingluded in the accompanying Management
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gr responsibility is to express an opinion o&dbmpany’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightigiq@nited States). Tho:
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of fineh statements for external purposes in accordwaittegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firtgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionstaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangseds that could have a material effect on then&iizh statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of chanc
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whth policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, Eagle Materials Inc. and subsidiannaintained, in all material respects, effedititernal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2009, based on the CO&€ria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Eagle Materialsaime.subsidiaries as of March 31, 2009 and 2008{tenrelated consolidated statements of
earnings, cash flows, and stockholders’ equityefmeh of the three years in the period ended Mat¢cR2@09 of Eagle Materials Inc. and our
report dated May 26, 2009 expressed an unqualifpgcion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Dallas, Texas
May 26, 2009

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Except for the information below regarding our cadiethics, the information called for by Items 1Q, 12, 13 and 14 is
incorporated herein by reference to the informatmtuded and referenced under the following capstim the Company’s Proxy Statement for
the Company’s August 6, 2009 Annual Meeting of &tmdders (the “2009 EXP Proxy Statement”):

Items Caption in the 2009 EXP Proxy Statement

10 Executive Officers who are not Directc

10 Election of Directors and Related Matt:

10 Stock Ownershi-Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coanptie

10 Stock Ownershi Code of Conduc

11 Executive Compensatic

11 Compensation Discussion and Analy

11 Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change ait©b

12 Stock Ownershi|

12 Approval of Amendment to Increase the Number ofr&h@vailable Under our Incentive Plan —
Equity Compensation Plan Informati

13 Stock Ownershi Related Party Transactio

13 Election of Directors and Related Matt:

14 Relationship with Independent Public Accounte

Code of EthicsThe policies comprising the Company’s code of atlfiEEagle Ethics - A Guide to Decision - Making on Biess
Conduct Issues) will represent both the code of ethics for thimgipal executive officer, principal financial offr, and principal accounting
officer under SEC rules, and the code of busineaslact and ethics for directors, officers, and eeés under NYSE listing standards. The
code of ethics is published on the corporate gamre section of the Company’s website at www.eaglerials.com
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Although the Company does not envision that anyeraiof the code of ethics will be granted, shauidaiver occur for the
principal executive officer, principal financialfafer, the principal accounting officer or contell it will be promptly disclosed on our internet
site. Also, any amendments of the code will be grttyrposted on our internet site.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
See Item 10 above.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

See Item 10 above.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
See Item 10 above.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
See Item 10 above.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
See Item 10 above.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
a) The following documents are filed as part of thepBrt:
(1) Financial Statemen
Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statésnender Item 8 in Part Il hereof, where theseaudwnts are listed.
(2) Schedule:

Schedules are omitted because they are not aplglioabot required or the information required &det forth therein
is included in the consolidated financial stateragaterenced above in section (a) (1) of this Ii&m

(3) Exhibits

The information on exhibits required by this IteBi& set forth in the Eagle Materials Inc. IndeXEtdibits appearing
on pages 84-87 of this Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Form 10-K
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedgtiveo duly authorized.

EAGLE MATERIALS INC.
Registran

May 27, 2009 /sl STEVEN R. ROWLEY
Steven R. Rowley, Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on thediamtgicated.

May 27, 200¢ /sl STEVEN R. ROWLEY
Steven R. Rowley
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer

May 27, 2009 /sl MARK V. DENDLE
Mark V. Dendle
Executive Vice President — Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and chief accounting offict

May 27, 2009 /s/ E. WILLIAM BARNETT
F. William Barnett, Directo

May 27, 2009 /sl ROBERT L. CLARKE
Robert L. Clarke, Directc

May 27, 2009 /s/ O. GREG DAGNAN
O. Greg Dagnan, Directt
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May 27, 200¢ /s/ LAURENCE E. HIRSCFH

Laurence E. Hirsch, Direct

May 27, 200¢ /s/ FRANK W. MARESH

Frank W. Maresh, Directc

May 27, 200¢ /sl MICHAEL R. NICOLAIS

Michael R. Nicolais, Directa

May 27, 200¢ /s/ DAVID W. QUINN

David W. Quinn, Directo

May 27, 200¢ /sl RICHARD R. STEWARI

Richard R. Stewart, Directt
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Exhibit

Number

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
EAGLE MATERIALS INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Description of Exhibits

Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Mealgesd as of November 4, 2003, among Centex Coiparadentex
Construction Products, Inc. (how known as Eagledvals Inc.) and ARG Merger Corporation filed ashibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed wittetSecurities and Exchange Commission (the “Coniomgson
November 12, 2003 and incorporated herein by refes:

Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement daseaf Alovember 4, 2003 between Centex CorporatignCGantex
Construction Products, Inc. (now known as Eaglegvials Inc.) filed as Exhibit 2.2 to the CompasZurrent Report on For
8-K/A filed with the Commission on November 12, 208& incorporated herein by referen

Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exh8.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the
Commission on April 11, 2006 and incorporated trelsi reference

Restated Certificate of Designation, PreferencelsRights of Series A Preferred Stock filed as Eit8L2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the Commission on April 11, 2006 amttorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Bylaws filed as Exhibit 3.BiéCompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tisedl year ended
March 31, 2007, filed with the Commission on May 2007 and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws filedxdmbi 3.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed with
the Commission on November 24, 2008 and incorpdragégein by referenc

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated asa#dber 16, 2004 among Eagle Materials Inc., thadless party theret
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative AgBahk of America, N.A. and PNC Bank, N.A. as Sgndication Agent:
and Sun Trust Bank and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. a®Goumentation Agents, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @empanys Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Decer@bgP005, filed with the Commission on Februar@)6 and
incorporated herein by referen:

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of November D5, 20nong the Company and the purchasers nameddrttiiged as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr&-K filed with the Commission on November 18, 3Ghd
incorporated herein by referen:

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of October Z, 20@ong the Company and the purchasers namedrtfigzd as Exhibil
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8ldfiwith the Commission on October 3, 2007 andripeated herein by
reference

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated Agridffl1, 2006, between Eagle Materials Inc. andiMelnvestor
Services LLC, as Rights Agent, filed as Exhibitl9h the Company’s Registration Statement on Fo#wS8filed with the
Commission on April 11, 2006 and incorporated trebsi reference

Joint Venture Interest Purchase Agreement, dated ldsvember 28, 2004, by and among Eagle ICC LL&xas Cemer
Company and RAAM Limited Partnership filed as Exhibl to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8kd with the
Commission on November 29, 2004 and incorporateeiméy reference
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10.2

10.2(a

10.3

10.3(a

10.3(b

10.3(c

10.3(d

10.3(e

10.3(f)

10.3(g

10.3(h

10.3(i)

10.3(j)

10.3(K

Limited Partnership Agreement of Texas Lehigh Cen@ampany LP by and between Texas Cement Compahy etmigh
Portland Cement Company effective as of Octob@000 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s AnnRabort on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, filedwmiite Commission on June 27, 2001 (the “2001 Fd#K") and incorporated
herein by referenci

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Limited Partnerdhjimnd among Texas Cement Company, TLCC LP LLGZCIGP LLC,
Lehigh Portland Cement Company, Lehigh Portlané$twments, LLC and Lehigh Portland Holdings, LLCzefive as of
October 2, 2000 filed as Exhibit 10.2(a) to the P6@rm 1(-K and incorporated herein by referen

The Eagle Materials Inc. Incentive Plan, as ameratetrestated filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Compswdyinual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 dfikeith the Commission on May 29, 2008 and incorteatderein by reference.
@

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement filed a$iBikt 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F&H filed with the
Commission on August 30, 2004 and incorporatedihdnereference)

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (EBIT) filed astihit 10.2 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed
with the Commission on August 30, 2004 and incaaiped herein by referenc®.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (RQit8d as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current R&jpo Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on August 30, 2004 and incoapex herein by referenc@.

Form of Nor-Qualified Director Stock Option Agreement filedEshibit 10.4 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed with the Commission on August 30, 2004 ancbifporated herein by referenée.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement filed asibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report onrcdi0-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2005, filed with the Commission agust 9, 2005 and incorporated herein by referehce.

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement filed as Exhibit @ to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2005, filed with the Comigrissn August 9, 2005 and incorporated herein lgremce ()

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Boype Directors filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the ComyarCurrent Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 1, BGnd incorporated by reference heréin.

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for N-Employee Directors filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Quamy’'s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on Aisg1, 2006 and incorporated by reference hefein.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Seiigecutives filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companyisrént Report on Form
8-K filed with the Commission on August 1, 2006 amcorporated by reference herein.

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Senior Exeeesi filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Compi's Current Report o
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 1, BGnd incorporated by reference heréin.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement fom&e Executives filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the ComyarQuarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20@d, With the Commission on August 7, 2007 and ipooated herein by

reference®
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10.3(l)

10.3(m

10.3(n)

10.3(0)

10.3(p)

10.3(q)

10.3(r)

10.3(s)

10.4

10.4(a)

10.5

10.6

10.7

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Senior Exeeesi filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp{’s Quarterly Repoil
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 318,Z0ed with the Commission on November 7, 2068 ancorporated

herein by referencé?

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Setiigecutives filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Quarterly Report on Fol
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 Wi¢h the Commission on November 7, 2008 and ipoated herein by

reference®

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated June 10, 20@&eea the Company and Mark V. Dendle filed as EixHiB.6 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpreended June 30, 2008, filed with the Commissiougust 8, 2008

and incorporated herein by referenée.

Eagle Materials Inc. Salaried Incentive Compensafioogram for Fiscal Year 2009 (filed as Exhibit1lth the Current Repa
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 50&0and incorporated herein by referenée).

Eagle Materials Inc. Cement Companies Salariednitinae Compensation Program for Fiscal Year 2008dfas Exhibit 10.2 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Corasion on June 5, 2008, and incorporated hereirfeyence)®

Eagle Materials Inc. Concrete and Aggregates Coiepadalaried Incentive Compensation Program fazefigear 2009 (filec
as Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8kdfwith the Commission on June 5, 2008, and ipomated herein by

reference)®

American Gypsum Company Salaried Incentive Compgears®&rogram for Fiscal Year 2009 (filed as Exhitfit4 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on i 2008, and incorporated herein by refereriée).

Eagle Materials Inc. Special Situation ProgramMi@cal Year 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the @mtrReport on Form-K
filed with the Commission on June 5, 2008 and ipocated herein by referencé).

The Eagle Materials Inc. Amended and Restated Suopgrttal Executive Retirement Plan filed as ExHibi# to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year eshdi#arch 31, 2000, filed with the Commission on J@&e2000 and

incorporated herein by referenée.

First Amendment to the Eagle Materials Inc. Amended Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Béed as of May
11, 2004, filed as Exhibit 10.4(a) to the Compamrsual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ethdlarch 31, 2006, filed

with the Commission on June 2, 2006 and incorpdrha&gein by referencé)

Trademark License and Name Domain Agreement dategialy 30, 2004 between the Company and Centexo€xdipn filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on FAOK for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, fileitbvthe Commissio
on June 14, 2004 (tt*2004 Form 1-K") and incorporated herein by referen

Tax Separation Agreement dated as of April 1, 188dong Centex, the Company and its subsidiaried &k Exhibit 10.6 to tr
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ended March 31, 2005, filed with the Comnoisgin June 10, 2005
and incorporated herein by referen

Paperboard Supply Agreement, dated May 14, 1998ndyamong Republic Paperboard Company (n/k/a Rieféperboard
Company LLC), Republic Group, Inc., and James Ha@ljpsum, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the 20@trk 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference. Portions of Exkibit were omitted pursuant to a request for menftial treatment filed with
the Office of the Secretary of the Securities ardiange Commissiol
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10.8

12.1*
21*

23.1*
31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

*

(€3]

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Conypand each of its directors filed as Exhibit 1@ %he 2004 Form K
and incorporated herein by referen

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg
Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Registered Independent Public Accouriing — Ernst & Young LLP.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of HagViaterials Inc. pursuant to Rules -14 and 15-14 promulgated under tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of HagVaterials Inc. pursuant to Rules -14 and 15-14 promulgated under t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of HagVaterials Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionQl 3 adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of HagMaterials Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionQl 36 adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith
Required to be identified as a management contragtcompensatory plan or arrangement pursuateno 15(a) (3) of Form 10-K.
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Exhibit 12.1

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Earnings®:
Earnings before income tax 62,18! 144,38: 304,28¢( 241,06t 158,08¢
Add: Fixed charge 29,79: 27,127 11,73¢ 8,29( 3,32¢
Add: Cash distributions from equity method investis 33,00( 37,75( 29,00( 27,25( 30,911
Subtract: Income from equity method investme (32,426 (33,98:) (32,76H (26,917 (26,92)
Total Earnings 92,54t 175,27¢ 312,26. 249,68¢ 165,41:
Fixed Charge®:
Interest expens 24,43: 20,53( 11,70¢ 8,29( 3,32¢
Interest component of rent expel 281 33€ 341 38¢ 461
Total Fixed Charge 24,71« 20,86¢ 12,05( 8,67 3,781
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 4.7x 9.4x 26.9» 29.8» 44.7x

(1) Earnings represent earnings before income tamdsefore income from equity method investmehts: ga) fixed charges; and (b) cash
distributions from equity method investmer

(2) Fixed charges include: (a) interest expense, whetkigensed or capitalized, less interest accruedrfoertain tax positions; and (b) t
portion of operating rental expense which manageimelieves is representative of the interest corepboof rent expens



Exhibit 21

The following is a list of subsidiaries of Eagle tdaals Inc., whollyewned unless otherwise stated. This list of subsiel includes all ¢
the significant subsidiaries of Eagle Materials. las of May 27, 2009.

Jurisdiction of
Entity Name Organization
AG SOUTH CAROLINA LLC Delaware
AMERICAN GYPSUM COMPANY LLC Delaware
AMERICAN GYPSUM MARKETING COMPANY Delaware
d/b/a American Gypsum Marketing Company, |
CCP CEMENT COMPANY Nevada
CCP CONCRETE/AGGREGATES LL Delaware
CCP GYPSUM LLC Nevada
CENTEX MATERIALS LLC Delaware
ILLINOIS CEMENT COMPANY LLC Delaware
MATHEWS READYMIX LLC California
MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY Nevada
NEVADA CEMENT COMPANY Nevada
REPUBLIC PAPERBOARD COMPANY LLC Delaware
TEXAS CEMENT COMPANY Nevada
TEXAS LEHIGH CEMENT COMPANY LP 50% Texas
d/b/a Texas Lehigh Ceme
TLCC GP LLC Delaware
TLCC LP LLC Delaware
WESTERN AGGREGATES LLC( Nevada

Page 1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 33-828282928, 33-84394, 333-54102 and
Form S-3 No. 333-159113) of Eagle Materials Incowf reports dated May 26, 2009, with respect ¢ocitnsolidated financial statements of
Eagle Materials Inc., and the effectiveness ofriraecontrol over financial reporting of Eagle Madds Inc., included in the Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended March 31, 2009.

We also consent to the incorporation by referend@é registration statements (Form S-8 No. 33-8283-82928, 33-84394, 333-54102 and
Form S-3 No. 333-159113) of Eagle Materials Incowf report dated May 26, 2009, with respect tdfitmencial statements of Texas Lehigh
Cement Company LP as of and for the year endedrbleee31, 2008, included in this Annual Report (FA®rK) of Eagle Materials Inc. for
the year ended March 31, 2009.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 26, 2009



Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectimm 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Steven R. Rowley, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Ealflaterials Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures [as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%3d internal control over financial reportirag (defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegm’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geeain the case of an annual report) that has madl{eaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 27, 2009

By: /s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY
Steven R. Rowley
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectimm 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Mark V. Dendle, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Ealflaterials Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures [as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%3d internal control over financial reportirag (defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegm’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geeain the case of an annual report) that has madl{eaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 27, 2009

By: /S/ MARK V. DENDLE
Mark V. Dendle
Executive Vice President —Finance and
Administration, Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectiomm 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Eagle Magtksrinc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) on FAaK for the period ended
March 31, 2009 as filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrt3teven R. Rowley, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted potrsoaection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(i) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.
Dated: May 27, 2009

By: /s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY
Steven R. Rowley
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2
Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectiomm 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Eagle Magtksrinc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) on FAaK for the period ended
March 31, 2009 as filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrtfiark V. Dendle, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICSsection 1350, as adopted pursuant to secti6roBthe Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha!
to the best of my knowledge:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(i) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.
Dated: May 27, 2009

By: /sl MARK V. DENDLE
Mark V. Dendle
Executive Vice President —Finance and
Administration, Chief Financial Office




